BOARD OF PUBLIC
WORKS

Auburn, Nebraska
J
2

AUBURN
BPW
Board Packet
July 16 at 11:30 a.m.
BPW Board Room
1600 O Street

Chairman — Chuck Knipe
Vice Chairman - Rich Wilson
Secretary — Michael Zaruba
Acting Secretary — David Grant
Board Member - Phil Shaw






AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS TO BE HELD JULY 16, 2025, AT 11:30 AM
AT THE BPW BOARD ROOM, 1600 O STREET, AUBURN NE

1) Roll Call.
2) Announce - The Open Meetings Act is posted on the northeast wall of the Board Room.

3) Recognition of Guests - Anyone wishing to be heard by the Board regarding items may
speak at this time. We request that you limit your speaking time to ten minutes per meeting.

4) Discussion / action — CHAMBER OF COMMERCE - Leslie Clark requested to approach
the Board regarding water usage for Bee Festival being held September 13, 2025

5) Discussion / action — IT SUPPORT- Request permission to submit request for proposals
in consideration of IT support.

6) Discussion / action — JOEL KELSAY - Request to address the Board regarding water
main.

7) Discussion / action — AUBURN WESTGATE - WATER MAIN TESTING — City of Auburn
and JEO request to address the Board regarding testing water lines.

8) Discussion / action —- WESTGATE ADDITION — Update on status of Westgate addition.

9) Discussion / action — WTP EQUIPMENT RENTAL BIDS - Request Board approval to
award bid contingent upon DWEE approval and recommendation from Miller & Associates
for temporary water treatment plant for the Longs Creek Water Project.

10)Discussion / action — UV EQUIPMENT BIDS - Request Board approval to award bid
contingent upon DWEE approval and recommendation from Miller & Associates for UV
disinfection process equipment to be installed in the Water Treatment Plant.

11)Discussion / action — UNIT #7 INTERCOOLERS - Request Board approval to purchase
two intercoolers for Unit #7 from Cooper Machinery Services. Total cost will range from
$85,000.00 to $105,000.00 depending on if cores are found non-reusable after inspection.

12)Discussion / action — SMR PUBLIC OUTREACH MEETING - Update on the small
modular reactor meeting held on June 25%.

13)Discussion - NPPD CAPABILITY TESTING — Update on NPPD capability testing for the
Power Plant contracted for capacity.

14)Discussion — CD RENEWALS — Update on CD’s that matured July 08, 2025.

15)Discussion / action — LARM INSURANCE RENEWAL - Review and request approval of
commercial property and workman’s comp insurance.



16)Discussion / action — POINT C — Request approval of contract with Point C to administer
HRA and COBRA benefits.

17)Discussion / action — DROUGHT CONTINGENCY STAGE 3 EMERGENCY — Update on
the Stage 3 water emergency and current conditions.

18)Discussion / action — WATER SOURCE SUPPLY INFORMATION - Update on Long’s
Creek water supply project.

19)Discussion / action — NPPD CAPACITY PURCHASE CONTRACT - Update on
negotiation with NPPD to purchase BPW capacity.

20)Discussion / action — NPPD WHOLESALE POWER CONTRACT - Update on the
proposed 2026 Wholesale Power contract with NPPD

21)Discussion / action — PERSONNEL BOARD REQUEST - Review, discussion and
possible action on personnel matters and recommendations from the hiring committee:
Pursuant to Nebraska State Statute, the Board may go into executive session to discuss
personnel matters.

22)Discussion / action — FINANCIALS:
Investments: All things cash: reconciliations, pledging, CD’s, allocations

23)Discussion / action - GENERAL CONSENT ITEMS
Approve previous meeting's minutes and dispense with reading of same.

a. Approve previous meeting minutes and dispense with reading of same.

b. Approve monthly compensation of management and employees as previously
fixed by the Board.

c. Approve listing of checks written during month, claims submitted for payment,
and recommended transfers.

d. Approve Free Service Reports.

24)REPORTS:

a. Electric
b. Power Plant
c. Water/\Wastewater

d. Office

25) Adjourn to the next regular meeting of the Board to be held August 20, 2025, at 11:30
a.m. at the BPW Board Room.

The Board of Public Works could go into closed session on any of the agenda items listed above in
accordance with the Nebraska Open Meetings Act.



BPW BOARD UPDATE

JuLy 11, 2025

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE - Leslie Clarke has requested to approach the Board regarding
water usage for activities during the Bee Festival being held September 13, 2025.

IT SUPPORT - Request permission to submit request for proposals for IT support.
JOEL KELSAY - Board review of sewer connection adjustment request.

AUBURN WESTGATE — WATER MAIN TESTING - Representatives from the City of Auburn
and JEO have requested to approach the Board regarding testing water lines in the Westgate
addition.

WESTGATE ADDITION — Update on the status of the Westgate Housing Addition.

WTP EQUIPMENT RENTAL BIDS - Request Board approval to award bid contingent upon
Nebraska Department of Water, Energy and Environment approval and recommendation from
Miller & Associates for temporary water treatment plant for the Longs Creek Water Project.

UV EQUIPMENT BIDS - Request Board approval to award bid contingent upon DWEE approval
and recommendation from Miller & Associates for UV disinfection process equipment to be
installed in the Water Treatment Plant.

UNIT #7 INTERCOOLERS - Request Board approval to purchase two intercoolers for Unit #7
from Cooper Machinery Services, the total cost for both intercoolers will range from $85,000 to
$105,000.00 depending on if customer cores are found non-reusable after inspection.

SMR PUBLIC OUTREACH MEETING - Update on the small modular reactor meeting held on
June 25" at Arbor Manor.

NPPD CAPABILITY TESTING - Update on NPPD capability testing for the Power Plant
contracted for capacity.

CD RENEWALS- CD’S #20693,20688, 20689, 20690, and 20691 that matured July 08, 2025,
were awarded to Auburn State Bank with the high bid. First National Bank of Johnson and Union
Bank & Trust also submitted bids.

LARM INSURANCE RENEWAL - Our LARM insurance is due for renewal. The total cost is
$353,314.00 This is a $37,449.00 increase, a 12% increase from last year’s cost of $315,865.00.
Workman’s Compensation has increased to $36,496.00 from $28,668.00 in 2024. Commercial
Property coverage increased from $287,197.00, to $316,818.00. Also, additional coverages are
listed in the packet. The Board may elect a three-year resolution which would reduce the total
premium to $335,648.00.

POINT C - Request approval of contract with Point C who has replaced Mid-American Benefit to
administer HRA and COBRA benéefits.

DROUGHT CONTINGENCY STAGE 3 EMERGENCY- Update on the Stage 3 Emergency and
current conditions.

WATER SOURCE SUPPLY INFORMATION- Update on a potential water supply - Longs Creek
Water Supply project.

NPPD CAPACITY PURCHASE CONTRACT - Update on negotiations regarding the contract
with NPPD to purchase BPW capacity.

NPPD WHOLESALE POWER CONTRACT - Update on negotiations regarding the Wholesale
Power Contract.

1|Page 3



BPW BOARD UPDATE

JuLy 11, 2025
PERSONNEL — BOARD REQUEST - Review, discussion and possible action on personnel
matters and recommendations from the General Manager hiring committee: Pursuant to Nebraska
State Statute, the Board may go into executive session to discuss personnel matters.

ELECTRIC - Crews are working on pole changes and line maintenance. The old oil breaks that
control the rural section of line between Brownville and Peru were replaced with a modern
electronic breaker control. The equipment used was left over from the substation rebuild and will
work well in the application. The new capacitor bank that was ordered for near Magnolia Metal
has arrived and is scheduled to be installed. This equipment will replace the old capacitor that
was not working correctly for the power factor correction on the Northwest feeder.

POWER PLANT - The fuel tank monitors have been ordered and power to the site has been ran.
This equipment was necessary to bring our fuel tanks up to code with the State Fire Marshall. Our
yearly generation capacity testing is complete and went well. This keeps us compliant with NPPD
testing on our generators for another year.

WATER/WASTEWATER - Continued daily monitoring of well levels and pumping activity. We
have one well under 5. Continued sewer maintenance. We are working on identified trouble
areas. Subsurface Technologies began CO2 treatment on wells beginning June 11%. All eight
wells are completed, and the flow has increased. Pumps at wells 1, 2, 6, 19 and 20 need to be
pulled for cleaning. Wells 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 19 and 20 meters were pulled and cleaned to remove rust
build up. Layne Christensen is putting together a service quote to clean the pumps. Water and
Wastewater Plant maintenance is ongoing. The City provided rock for the road at Longs Creek in
preparation of the new water treatment site. Village of Nemaha had their pressure tank cleaned
and inspected. BPW drained and prepared for the tank service. Work was performed by Pittsburg
Tank. Water samples were sent in for testing. The City of Peru is draining and cleaning their water
tower.

OFFICE — We have hired a new Ultility Billing Clerk to replace Kelly Stahl who is leaving August
18". We have been working on open enroliment for benefits. The audit is complete and submitted
to the State of Nebraska

2|Page 4



¢ abed uo s|ge) o8s - # asnen
ulw |> - 1oys ‘uiw < - Buo
suondnuiajul Jo # - S|
psinpayosun Jo ps|npayos - N/S

(s4owoysna e Joj Jawolsnd Jad suondniisiul HOys JO #) 0 0 AuD 03 Aiddng ul sabejynQ |ejol
xapu| Aouanbai4 uondnuisiu] abeiany weishs - (Loys) |4IVS 0 9 wa)sAg AjD uiyiipn sebeynQ [ejo
(sJawoysnod ||e Joy Jawo)snd Jad suondnuiisiul Buol Jo #) - v26 INO saynuIpy Jawoisng [ejo |
xapu| Aouanbai4 uondnuisiu] abelany waishs - (buo) 14IVS - 0 (syu1g -1oys) pajoayy SIawoisny |ejo |
(suawo}sno ||e Joj Jawoysno Jad pajdnuisiul seynuiw abesane) - g (BuoT) INO sJawolsny |ejo |
xapu| uoneing uondnusju| abesany wa)sAs - |AIVS 0 0 (syuiig) sebenQ poys |ejo |
(Jowoysno paydnuisyul Jad paydnuisiul ssynuiw abesane) 0 9 [sebeng buo |ejo
xapu| uoneing uondnuisju| abelaAy Jawoisng - |dIvD s|ejo]
(9% © se ‘sanuiw JaWwo)sno |ejo}/a|qe|ieA. Sa)nulul J8Wwolsnd) 0 0 sanui A1 o) Alddng #
xapu| AyjigejieAy 91n18g abelany - [ySY 0 0 wlsAS AJD UIUNM #
000 000 (1sn2 joysyun) (Woys) 141VS 0 0 Psjosyy siswoisny #
000 26 (3sn2 joysjui) (BuoT) 141V'S 0 0 (syuig) sabenQ # Hous
000 16'LL (uiw) (6uo7) 1QIVS 0 0 sajnuiN Aup oy Aiddng #
000 Ge'ly (uiw) (BuoT) 1AIVO 0 € wayshs AJIQ UIIAN #
0000°0 2986'66 (%) IVSY 0 0lLe INO S8NUIN JBwoIsnY #
Jeg\ jse] Yuon 0 S9 INQ senuIN #
Yjuojn sty siylL Xapuj 0 Sl INQ sJswosn) #
Jo sy jo sy 0 ¢ sebenQ # BuoT
sonsne}s abeyno yjuow zi sabejno pajnpayas
0 0 SSINUIN AiD 03 Aiddng # |
0 0 woyshs AN Ui #
YA 0 9 [ejol - 0 p8josyy siswoisny #
%V 4 0 L umowiun| 6 0 0 (syung) sebeino # Hoys
%ET L 0 B ol 8 0 0 sajnuly A 03 Ajddng #
%0 0 0 0 uewnHf 0 € wlsAS AJD UIUIM #
%0 0 0 0 aoualspayu| ublalo4| 9 - ¥19 INO sajnuIpy JBWoISND #
%0 0 0 0 seall|l § - ¥8 INQ s8InuI #
%9¢ cl 0 } ") ‘seyeug ‘slewiuy ‘spig| v - 62 INQ sJswosny #
%<CE Sl 0 3 Jaylesp\| € 0 € sabeino # buo
%L1 S 0 0 ainjie yuawdinb3 punosBispun| ¢z sebejnQ pajnpayoasun
%Y Z 0 0 ainjie juswdinb3 pesyianQO l Jea, jse
%0 0 0 0 Ao oy Aiddng| 0 Yuol siyL | yuow siyiL
1v 1v ded, jseq yjuoin # sjejo] abeno
% _|Pulloy | ysuow siyL [Siul lejol uonduasag asne)
_
(asneg Aq) sabejng jo JaquinN 0¢ 008'r2E8L L YJUOIN S!y} s8jnuly Jswoisny |ejol
_ _ _ ypuo yo skealecs'z YJUOIN SIy} SI9WO0ISND |30
G20¢  8unp SAIIVININNS IOVLNO SMHOM 2I79dNd 40 ay¥vo9g Ndnanv



Outage Reasons

7/11/2025

@2024 m2025

Number of Outages (by Cause) | 2024|2025 | Increase
0 Supply to City 0 0 0%
1 Overhead Equipment Failure 0 2 2%
2 Underground Equipment Failure 0 5 5%
3 Weather 0 15 15%
4 Birds, Animals, Snakes, etc. 0 12 12%
5 Trees 0 1 1%
6 Foreign Interference 0 0 0%
7 Human 0 0 0%
8 Other 0 11 11%
9 Unknown 0 2 2%
Outages By Cause
16
14
12
10
8
6
4 I
2
: i i m i
\OO© « &\)‘6 « -’b&)@) Q\X\Q} & 3 &@)@% Q,\Q}\c’@ Q\O & O\‘(\é \{_QO&Q
Q\* @6\ e& N (\‘1\# \0{\ N
N < & ) AN
& & &P
'bb (\b \?S\\ QO
<® o o
\\‘Z} &é Q’)\’sb




July 10, 2025
Kearney, Nebraska

Auburn Board of Public Works
P.O. Box 288
Auburn, NE 68305

Re:

Proposals for Pre-Clarification Equipment Rental
Project No. 552-C1-001

Dear Board Members:

Agenda #9

VA

Miller & Associates
CONSULTING ENGINEERS, P.C.

1111 Central Ave. Kearney, NE 68847-6833

Tel: 308-234-6456
Fax: 308-234-1146
www.miller-engineers.com

On July 8, 2025 at 2:00 PM, two proposals were received for the pre-clarification equipment
rental. One proposal followed the bid specifications, and one was a non-conforming proposal.
The non-conforming proposal was received from Rain for Rent. Rain for Rent provided a rental
agreement, however, the equipment does not meet NSF 61 Standards which is required by the
Nebraska Department of Water, Energy & Environment. NSF 61 Standards are nationwide
requirements for equipment that comes into contact with drinking water.

The one conforming proposal from WesTech is summarized below:

No Description Proposal Cost
1 Mobilization Lump Sum $2,850
2 Demobilization Lump Sum $7,720
Rental Options Per Month Total
3 3- Month $52,940 $158,820
3a. | 6-Month $37,820 $226,920
3b. | 12 Month $32,145 $385,740
4 Equipment Rental Renewal for Additional Year Lump Sum $385,740
5 Technical Assistance for Start-up (Training, Start-up $7,750
of Equipment, Optimizing Treatment) Lump Sum
6 Technical Assistance after 2 Months of Operation (if $7,750
needed) Lump Sum
7 Provide Incidental Equipment (Filter Sand, Etc.) Lump Sum $2,540
8 Provide System Integration from Equipment PLC to
Water Treatment Plant Includes 4 hrs No Charge
9 FOB to Auburn Lump Sum $3,580
10 Sales Tax Not Included; Will
be added at time
of invoicing

The bid includes fixed costs of mobilization, demobilization, start-up, training and refresher
training (if needed) along with incidental items which include filter sand. Those costs are
$32,190, which will be added regardless of the length of the rental period.

KEARNEY . McCOOK - LAKEWOOD,CO

COoOLBY, KS



Agenda #9

o provide the Board with an idea for the 6-month installation, the following ére anticipated
expenditures:

Mobilization of Equipment $2,850
6 Months Rental Equipment $226,920
Demobilization of Equipment $7,720
Technical Assistance at Start-Up $7,750
Refresher after 2 Months Operations $7,750
Incidental Supplies $2,540
FOB (delivery trucking) $3,580
Sales Tax TBD
Intake Pump/Struct TBD
Known Fixed Cost for 6 Months Equipment $259,110
Average Cost Per Month $43,185

The equipment rental does not include the intake structure and pump in Longs Creek, sales tax
and installation of required electrical and control equipment. These items will be required to be
designed and submitted to the Nebraska Department of Water, Energy & Environment for
review and approval prior to initiating operation of the equipment. It also does not include
operational cost (power) and chemical use.

The timing of initiating the use of the pre-clarification equipment will be dependent upon the
installation of the UV equipment. Due to the change in source water the UV has to be
operational before we can provide water from Longs Creek. At the present time, delivery is a
minimum of 16 weeks (November 5") to 26 weeks (January 14", 2026), depending upon the UV
bid selected. Installation, testing and calibration would occur after delivery. Water from Longs
Creek would not be able to be used until the UV unit is operational and online. This would
mean that the pre-clarification equipment would not be ready for use until Spring of 2026.

It should be noted that the preliminary filtration equipment can only be utilized during summer
and will not be able to be operated during freezing conditions.

The Board of Public Utilities would need to select the length of time that the equipment would
need to be rented and when you would want the rental to begin.

Respectfully submitted,

MILLER & ASSOCIATES
CONSULTING ENGINEERS, P.C.

I Rtrer

Jeffrey S. Peterson, P.E.

JSP/h




Agenda #10

July 9, 2025 Miller & Associates
Kearney, Nebraska CONSULTING ENGINEERS, P.C.

1111 Central Ave. Kearney, NE 68847-6833

Tel: 308-234-6456
Fax: 308-234-1146
’ www.miller-engineers.com
Board of Directors ‘

Auburn Board of Public Works
P.O. Box 288
Auburn, NE 68305

Re: UV Equipment Procurement
Project No. 552-C1-001

Dear Board Members:

On July 8th at 2:00 PM, two (2) bids were received, publicly opened, and read aloud at the
Miller & Associates Kearney office. The bids are summarized below:

Shop Delivery Time
Model Drawing After Approved
Bidders No. Total Bid Submittal Shop Drawings |
Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc. 250e $168,180 40-56 Days 112-126 Days
Electric Pump, LLC D12 $183,692 30 Days 84 Days

The proposals have been reviewed, and the Electric Pump Bid noted a different model than
specified [D12 in lieu of DO6]. The Owner has the right to waive any informalities if desired.
Electric Pump was contacted to verify the cost for the D06 Trojan unit and they provided a cost
of $149,250. The Bidders identified delivery times in their Bids and they are shown above.

There are minor differences in the equipment provided due to different manufacturers’
equipment, however both providers are similar and are able to meet the performance
specifications and requirements for a 3.5 log removal of cryptosporidium as required for surface
water treatment. Electric Pump provided a larger unit than specified based on initial
conversations, when we did not know the Ultraviolet Transmittance. In the specifications, based
on the samples tested by Staff, a smaller Trojan Unit (D06) was capable of meeting the
treatment requirements and had a shorter lead time.

The Specifications were submitted to the Nebraska Department of Water, Energy &
Environment for their review and approval, however they are not approved at this time.

The Engineer's Opinion of Probable Equipment Cost was $180,000. The lowest responsible bid

from Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc. is 7% below the Engineer's Opinion of Probable
Equipment Cost.

KEARNEY . McCOOK . LAKEWOOD,CO . COLBY, KS



Agenda #10

The Board can waive informalities and accept the Revised Bid from Electric Pump using the
specified Model D06 at $149,250, or it can accept the bids as presented, and award the contract
to Xylem Water Solutions USA, Inc. contingent on the Nebraska Department of Water, Energy -
and Environment (DWEE) approval in the amount of $168,180 and authorization given to your
authorized representative to execute agreements.

Respectfully submitted,

MILLER & ASSOCIATES
CONSULTING ENGINEERS, P.C.

M tetowzor-

Jeffféy S. Peterson, P.E.

JSP/jh

10




COOPER |5z

Agenda #11

QUOTATION
Cooper Machinery Services LLC Document number :US05/RU20/111157242
Used Equipment Sales Page 1 of 6
315 SADIEST Date Issued :JUN 09 2025
ODESSATX 79764-2372 Payment Terms ZIMM-Pay Immediately
USA Terms and conditions :As Attached/Included
Incoterms :FOB-Free on board
Free On Board
Freight Terms :
Sold to : 1000005 Ship to : 1000005
Company Company
ONETIME CUSTOMER ONETIME CUSTOMER
Inside Sales Contact: Alfred Covos
Email: ALFRED.COVOS@COOQOPERSERVICES.COM
JUN 09 2025
JUN 09 2025

Item Material Number
Description

Extended Weight

Qty UM Unit Net Price  Extended Price

000010 SHOP PARTS-CB
Intercooler Recondition
CMIR : 2-02H-636-008

A $10000.00 CHARGE WILL BE APPLIED PER CORE IF CUSTOMER CORES
FOUND NON-REUSABLE AFTER INSPECTION

Lead Time  : 8 Weeks Delivery From Date Of Order Placement

Price Summary :

USD USD
0.000 Ib 2 EA 42,500.00 85,000.00
Total Price : 85,000.00 USD
Same Day Shipment Charges: 0.00 USD
USD
Total Quotation Price : 85,000.00 USD

Cooper Machinery Services

11



CDOPER | MACHINERY Agenda #11
‘ | SERVICES

Document number :US05/RU20/111157242
Page 2 of 6

MINIMUM ORDER REQUIREMENTS: $200 Minimum for all Orders.
CREDIT TERMS: Credit Terms confirmed at time of order. Progress paymentsmay apply.

RETURN OF PRODUCTS AND ORDER CANCELLATION: Cooper Machinery Services shall accept returns of normally stocked
Goods for a period of thirty (30) days following shipment for exchange or refund of the purchase price; provided, that Goods
must be in their original cartons, unopened and unused and are subject to a return inspection. Appropriate restocking/
cancellation feesequal to the greater of (1) the cost incurred by Seller as a result of the cancellation, or (2) 25% of the purchase
price. Non-stocked items(made to order) and Consumable type Goods such as gaskets, O-rings, nuts, bolts, wear parts, etc. are
not returnable once shipped to the Buyer and no credits or refunds can be offered to the Buyer.

EXPORT COMPLIANCE: The items, technology, or software covered by this document may be subject ta various laws including
U.S. and foreign export controls. Cooper Machinery Services LLC is committed to compliance with all relevant export control
laws, [f the items, technology, or software are of U.S. origin or are being exported from the U.S. or will be re-exported, the

following language applies: "These commodities, technology or software were exported from the United Statesof America in
accardance with the Export Administration

12



MACHINERY
| SERVICES

COOPER

Agenda #11

, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS FOR SALE OF PRODUCTS, FARTS AND/OR SERVICES

NOTICE: Any purchase by Buyer of Products, Parts and/or Services from Seller is subject to these Terms and Conditions. Any
additional or different terns proposed by Buyer are expressly objected to and shall ot be binding upan Seller unless expreasly
Bccepted in writing by Seller's euthorized representative. Any order for Products, Parts and/or Services shall constitute aceeptance
of these Terms and Conditions,

1. DEFINITIONS

from countries different from Seller’s country of i {drop shi shalf pass di after vach item departs
from the. teritorial land, seas and overlying mirspace nfthe sending country. For the avmdsa:s afdoubt, Seller or its relevant
Group membor shatl retain tille to gay equipment keased to Buyer Group,

2.3 If any of the Products and/or Farts cannot be shipped to Buyer in accordance with the agreed upon Delivery (evms dug to any
tause nol ettributabla 1o Sallér Group, upen notice to Buyer, Seller may store such Products and/or Parts or ship ihem 0 cwiside
storage, in which cases: () sty amounts otherwise payable to Seller upon Delivery or shipmeot shall become paysble upon
presentation of a certification specifying the causs and placs of storage (any payment security shall sllow paymenis wpon
prvsﬂmﬂen of notice to storage instead of transport docmmts). (n} all expenses incumed by Seller Group, such as for

"Amlilte"mwnsmthﬁspulweilhnplnyanmw(' luding without limitation any individual, corparation,
leaited l&lhul!ty eompuy, association, or trust) that direatly cr indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under commun control
with, such

"Appllclble Law" or ‘App'lwa‘aln Lawy” means nny hnv. sttute, order, deceee, rule, injunction, llunsa. pemul, consenk, epproval,
aetlon of 2 comp which applies to

the salerof Products, Paris and/or pm'vlswn of Samees
*Buyec" muans the entity purchasing Produats, Pasts snd/or Sevvices and its successors and permitted assigns,

“Buyer Taxes" weans all existing and future taxes, dities, faes, and other charges of any neture (including, but not limited to, ad
valorem, consumption, exoise, franchise, gross receipts, import, export, license, property, sales mnd use, stamp, storsge, transfer,
turnover, value-added taxes ("VAT®), o other smilar Laxes, and any and all {tems of deficioncy, panalty, addition to tax, interest,
or essessmeal ralated Koralo), imposed or mssessed by any governmentaf authority of any country in connection with the

jon of this Contract ar aof or payment for work hereemder, but exeluding Seller Taxes.

"Claims" ' means ell claims, demands, causes of action, ligbilities, damages, judgments, fines, penalties, awards, losses, costs, nod
expenses (1 wiﬂmul“ tation, att ! fses and costs of litigation) of any kind or character,

"Consequentisl Losy™ means, whether direct ar indirect, and whether oraot foreseeablo at the time of entering inta the Contract oy
et the ime of commencing performance: any loss, delay or interruption of business, profits, revenue; production or opportunity;
loss of product, use or equipment; standby time; rig, vessel, or other facility or nﬁpmmﬂ dmﬁma, cost of capital; cost of
substitute equipment, facilities, services or replacement power; overhead; any special, punitive, exemplary, incidental and/or
ronsequential damages oc losses; and/or Clains of a party’s customers. for any of the abave lossos, costs or damages.

"Contract” means either ihe contract agreement signed hybuthpuﬁum r.h: pnmhue uni:rmgm:d byBuya and expressiy
accepted by Séller in writing, fogether with these Terms and Co any oth d by reference, Seller’s
Froposal, and any agreed scops of work for the sale of Products, Parts, and/or Semm

"Contract Price” means the aggregate amount to be psid by Buyer to Seller for the purchase of Products, Parts andfor Services, ae
stated in the Contract, and any agreed djustments ta the same,

"Delivety” mesas when the Prod haye been delivered dij

construed recordingly,

(o' the applicable Incolerm (2010). "Deliver" shall be

"Group® means with respect to either perly, such party (either Buyer or Seller, ss applicable), as well as jls APfiliates, sud in
connection with the projeot to which the Produots, Parts and/oc Services relate, ils joint venture partnees, joint interest owners, co-
lessees, consortivm members and/or other pertners, m:l. in respect of Buyer anly, the Site owner, end user, or Site operator; and
for all of the stiove, alsa it and their and of any tier in- ion with said project, s woll as the
shatcholders, nﬁfznr, directors, employces, invitees, ageats, end consiltants of all of the foregoing. "Buyer Group™ and "Selter
Group" shal] be cobstrued accordingly. Seller Graup daes nat include any member of Buyer Group and Buyer Graup does not
inclodo 2oy member of Seller Group,

i y chemical, sub material, wasta or emission defined, classified or reguluted as hazardons
ar toxie, or as-z pollutant, contmmisant, or threat urpo%enhal threst to hinan health, safety or the nvironment under Applicable
Ltw. [ncluﬂmg but not hmud 2] uamn;l'ly di e material, hydrocarb asbestos, lead, hydrogen sulphide ar
P ing biphenyts and bi

"Tadsmaify" means release, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless.

"Parts" means the spare or repkired parts required in elation to the Product, jdeutified by Seller in the Conitract,

"Produsts* means all equipment, roaterals, supplies, softwars, products, end other goods (excluding Parts) as applicable, sold
under the Contrect.

"Broposal” means Ssllars formal offer o provids the Products, Pasts emdfor Services, and any mutoally agreed written
Amendmanis thercto,

"REGARDLHESS OF CAUSE QR ACTION" MBANS (TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY AFPLICABLE
LAW), REGARDLESS OF: CAUSE, FAULT, DEFAULT, NEGLIGENCE IN ANY FORM OR DEGRER, STRICT OR
ABSOQLUTE LIABILITY, BREACH OF DUTY (STATUTORY OR OTHRRWISE) OF ANY PRRSON, INCLUDING OF THE
INDEMNIFIED PBRSDN, UNSEAWORTHINESS OF ANY VESSEL, AND/OR ANY DEFECT IN ANY PREMISES/
VESSEL; FOR ALl OF THE ABOVE, WHETHER PRE-EXISTING OR NOT AND WHETHER THE DAMAGES,
LIABILITIES, OR CLAIM8 OF ANY KIND RESULT FROM CONTRACT, WARRANTY, INDEMNITY, TORT/
EXTRACONTRACTUAL OR STRICT LIABILITY, QUASE CONTRACT, LAW, OR OTHERWISE,

“Seller” means Cooper Machinery Services, LLC or named Cooper Affifiate signing the Contract or the purchase order, aod its
suceessors &nd permitied assigps,

*Seller Taxes™ means all corporsds income taxes imposed an Seller and any taxes mposed on s:ll.m's :mployees In connection
with the-exegutlon of this Coutract or the p of or peyment for work b der by

“Servioes" means all the services, including, without lail
dirgnostics, ta ho provided by Saller undor the Contract,

"5ite" means the premmises whers Parts or Produots are used or meant ta be usod and/or Services are porformied or meant to be
performed, not including any Soller Group's premises.

technicsl nesi sod guidlnce. training, repeirs, sad remoty

2. DELIVERY, TRANSFER OF TITLE & RISK, STORAGE, LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

2.1 Unless etherwise provided in the Contract and in dance with § 2010: (1) for sb that do net involve an
exit out of Sa[ln'u cauntry of incorporatin, Selter shali Deliver the Product/Patts io' Buyer FCA Soller's l'u:lhty. place of
h (i) for ghl] wilkin (he oustoms territory, Seller shall Deliver CPT - carrings paid to
pamed place of destination; (iil) for ther expurta!upmem out of Seller's country of incorporation, Seller shall Deliver Products/
Parts to Boyer FOB, in case of wunsportation by sea (speclfying tho port of export); FCA lorded inlo aircraft, in oase of
hnspnmhnn by air {specifying tho airport of export); or CPT - carriage paid to named plece of destination specified between the
paztics, in cmofmapqmnon by reil or road. The "Delivory Date® for zny itemt of Products/Parts 3s defined as the dats on which
much item is Delivered in accordance with this Asticle, Partial Delivery and Delivery inadvance of the Delivery schedulo:shall be
permitied, unless atherwise specified in 1the Contract,

2.2 Subject to Article 2.3, tithe and risk of loss to Products and/or Parts shall pass upon Delivery-as provided in Article 2.1, whh
the exception (hat title and risk vf loss to: (f) Products and/or Parts skipped from ths United States of Amerita (“12.5,") shall

from Soller 16 Buyer immediately after each itorn depats. from the U.S. territorial land, seas and nmlying AirBpRCe, wlul:h the.
parties acknowledge extend to twelve nautical miles from the baseline of the country, determined in accordance with the 1982
United Netions Convention of the Law of the Sea; and (i} Products and/or Parts to ho shipped to a Delivery destination directly

)l into sforage, handling, i mnn. preservation, insurance, remaval charges, interest, and any VAT or
other taxes mpo;od directly or indirecily under Applicabla Law shall be roimbussed or paid by Buyer upon snbimission of Seller’a
invaices; and (iii) when reasonably possible and upoa payment of all amoumts due hereunder, Seller shall resume Delivery of the
Products andfor Partg to the originally agreed point of Delivery. Title and risk of luss to Products andfor Parts shall pasg as
provided in Aricle 2.2, , provided that Seller shall riol have suy obligation to store sny ifem beyond §0 calendar days snd if the
storage period extends beyend 60 days, Seller shall be entitled to resume Delivery of the Products/Paris in accardance with Astivle
2.1 . The terms of Article 2.3 shall apply also in the event any Buyer equiptment repaird at Seller Groug's ficilities cannat be.
shipped o or received by Buyer in-accardancs with the agreed upon terms, provided that, in the case of Buyor equipmeat 1o be
repaired nt Seller Grovp's fhcilities, Buyer shall retain title to, and risk of loss for, sy such oquipment at =l times,

24. In the event of a delay in tbe Deelivery of Products end/or Parls beyond lhe mmm!ly agreed Dellvery Date or & delay in
tho of the of Services beyond tha date, If such Delivery/
commencement is not excused wmder the terms of the Comtract, Seller Gmup shal| be lisble exclusively for the following
li mdmeddlmages,nnlesudnﬂbmlmmth sct forth in the Contract: Ds%nnhemeﬂhaddnyedllmfmmmkof
delay, or 0.1% of the price of the delayed Service for each day of defay, in ali cases il smount of 5%
of the overall pertion of the Contract Price allocable to the delayed Services, Products ut?om Thepmlel agree that such
liguidated damages aro not & penally and represent a fair and reasonsbls estimate of the damages Biryer Group may suffer ss a
result of delay, SAID LIQUIDATED DAMAGES SHALL CONSTITUTE THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE LIABILITY OF
SELLER GROUP AND THE BOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY OF BUYER GROUP FOR DBLAY. No liquidated damages:
‘are due unless Buyer has suffered direct economic harm.

3. BXCUSABLE DELAYS

3.1 Neither party shall ba liable or considered in fireach or default of its obli to thy (' such obl]
is dalayed or prevented, direstly or indirectly, dus to canses beynnd the impasted pacty's ressonable control, including but not
limited to: (i) acts of Gad, acts ar omissions of firo, severe wnthu-mdinum, earthquake, strikes or
otler labor disturbances, flood, sericus risk of kid: ing, war {declared or amed conflic, acts or threats of
terrorism, epidemics, civil uncest, riot, severe dslay in transportation, severe: ear shortage, or inability to oblain necossary
materials, compaaents or services; (i) in the cass of Seller, acts or pmissions of Buyer Group, including failure to Simely provide
Selier Group with necess, information, tools, material, and approvals necessery ta permit Selter Group to timely parﬁxm the
mqulmd sctivities, and including, without Hmitak k p!n'slcll Jitions at the Site'of an unusual nature and

from those ordi d znd generlly i ing in the work of the character provided for in
the Ceotract. The affected party shall zromptly notify the other party ln the event of a delay undar this Article, The Dnllv:ry or
performance dates shall be extended for a period equal to the tims lost by reason.of sush delay, plus such ndditionsl time.as may
be reasonshily necessary to gvercono tha effect of auch delay, I Saller is dolayed by #ots or omissions of Buyer Group, or by the
prerequisite work of Buyer's other contractors, Seller ghall also be eotitled to an equitable price adjustment. Under no
circomstances shall Buyer's psyment obligation be deemed excussble under this Article.

3.2 If & dolay-excused by this Asticle 3 extends for more than 90 day= snd tho parfics have tol agreed upon-a revised basis for
resuming work, inclading an equitable price sdjustmant, then cither party (except whare delay 13 cansed by Huyer Group, in which
event only Seller), upon 3¢ days writlon notice may leminala the Contract with respect to the naexecuted portion of the work. In
the event of 2 delay under Articls 3,1(i), the terms of Articlo 10,2 shall apply im full In the event of a deley under Article 3.1(3),
Buyer ghell psy Seller the pro-vated Cavtract Prics for all work performed before the effective date-of termination.

4. WARRANTY

4. Subject to the limiwtions set forth in the Cantract, Sellcr warmnts to Buyer that: (i) the Products and/er Pars shall be
Delivered fren from defects in material, workmacship and titte; and (ii) the Services shall be performed in a competent and
diligeat maager in accordance with any mmutually agreed specifications. Unless Selier exprassly agrsos otherwiss in writing and
except for Products/Parts provided by Seller's Affiliates, any Parix not d by Seller (lneluding incidental materials and
consumables used in the Services) shall carcy only the watranty provided by the original mamufhcturers, snd Seller gives no
warranty for such Parts.

4.2 Unless otherwise stated in ihie Contract, the wamanty perlod ("Warranty Perfod”) shall be as foflows: (T) for each Product
(excluding Parts), 12 months Fom Start-Up dave, or 8,600 rmuning hours, or 13 munlbs from the date of Detivary, or from tha date
of noties that the Products are ready for :h:’pmut, if ths Delivery vannot lake place for reasons nat ettributsble to Seller Group, or
fromn the dats of notice that the Products are put into storags under Adticle 2.3, whichever nccur first; (i) for Sorvices, one year
afler performence of the Servics; {ill) for Parts, 18 monihs after Dulivery or 12 menths aﬁcrmstuﬂunon. w)nd::ver ocguss firsl;
{v) for repaired, replaced, or re-pu-fmmed Pmdunu, Parts, or Services, six months after i
provided that Selter Gtm.lps warranty cbligations. shall in all casey terminate and in no event extend heynmi 24 months after
Delivery or placsment into slorage of tho ariginal Producis/Parts nrpmhmmm of the initisl Bervice. As used herein, "Start-Up"”
meapg the qulpm;ul starl-up activities to ba carried out by Buyer in comnection. with the Products not later than 30 days from
Beller's written notification that the Products are ready for start-up,

4.3 If Products, Parts, or Services do not mest the sbave warranties during the applicable Warmnty Period and Buyer informs
Seller in writing within 15 days of discovery, Soller's sole and exclusive Hability shall be fo either te-pecform the defectiva
Servicas, or ropair or replace the defective component of the Producis/Parts, st Seller's option. If despilo Seller’s reasonable
offors, a nun«:onrmmmg Product/Part cannot be repm.md or replaced, or aom-conforming Services cantot bs re-performed, the
perties will negotiate an equitable adjustment in price with respect fo such Product, Parts, componzat, o Service. Sd]er Group
shall not under any circumstances be lishis for defects that acise.or are discovered after expiration of the Warranty Peri

4.4 Seller shall not be Huble fir 1 ievi defestive Products or Parts, ar for
roinslelling repaired or roplacement Producta/Parts, or for. any mu dnmasu or Josses foumred in comnection with any of the:
abave operations. Seller shall be responsible to transport defective Produets oy Parts only to and from tho original Delivery point.
f.ug'kal sl]i;\lbe for all custorns formalities, costs and taxes connected with any export to Selter or import of goods sent

to Buyer.

4.5 Soller does oot wirrant the Products, Parts or any repaired or replacement itsnt ngaing!: normsl wear aud tear, including that
due to cnvuvnmenl, excessive operation at peak capnhlhty, frequent starting, type of fuel, detrimentsl air inlet conditions or
erosmu, r.onmmn or ml.ennl d.qnuts feorn. fluids, misyse, accident, miodification, heating, machining, bending, welding,

of any kind, or dif more severe than, or olherwise exceeding those set forth in, the specifications
rnr tho ralmmnl Pmduc( or Part, The mmnﬁf:; and remedies set ﬁm.h herein are further cmdinomd upon: (') pmer storage,
0] with the
manuals (lnclu-'llug mnsiuns thereto) provided by Seller Graup; (u) Buyer kecping accurata ‘and cumpieto xeounis ot‘ operation
and maintenxnce d'Lm.ng the Warranty Peciod and providing Sellet access to those reconds; acd {iii) repair or modification pursuant
1o Seller’s instructions and approval. Failure ta mect any such conditions in Article 4.5 renders the warrenty audl and void,

4.5 THE REMEDIBS SET FORTH IN ARTICLE 4 CONSTITUTE THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES FOR: ALL
CLAIMS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO ANY PAILURE OF, OR ANY DEFECT OR NON-CONFORMITY IN, THE
PRODUCTS, PARTS, OR SERVICES, REGARDLESS OF WHEN THE FAILURE, DEFECT OR NON-CONFORMITY
ARISES AND REGARDLESS OF CAUSE OR ACTION. THE WARRAMTIES SHT FORTH RN ARTICLE 4 ARE
EXCLUSIVE AND IN LIEG OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, CONDITIONS, AND GUARANTEES, WHETHER
WRITTEN, DRAL, IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY. NOQ TMPLIED OR STATUTORY WARRANTY OR CONDITION OF
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A FPARTICULAR PURPOSE SHALL APPLY.

13



MACHINERY
SERVICES

COOPER/=

4? Al Parts Delivered shall conform to Seller's part or version number specified in the Contract, or its equivalent or the
uperszding number subsequantly assigned by Seller. If the number ordered is no longer available, Saller {5 authorized to provids
sva!ld Interchangeable Part without notice to Buyer.

5, INSPECTION AND FACTORY TESTS - The quality control exercised by Seller in its mavafacture of Products/Parts shall be

in accordance with Selle’s nemnn! qualily cantrol policies, procedures and practices, Unless ofherwise expressly agreed in the
Contract, Sslter shall attempt to-accommodate Buyer's requests to witness Seller's factory tests of Products/Parts, but only if such
witnessing can be arrapged without delaying ibe work. Access to Seller Group's premiges shell be Hmited to areas directly
concarned with the Producta/Perts, excluding in all cases areas whera work of a proprietary nafure is conducted.

6, CHANGES - Each party may at any time proppse changes in the schedule or scope af Parts, Products or Services in the form.

of s draft change onder, Niither party is obligated tn proceed with the changed scheduls ar scopes mtl! both partisa agree to auch

:ndhnnmpinmﬂnﬂ iting, Unless otherwise agreed by the parties, pricing for additonal work adsiag from such changes shall bs st time
raftes.

7. PAYMENT

7.1 Buyer shall pay to Seller el invoiced amounts Net 38 days when due or in a timely manner geoording to the Contract. Tf
aothing is agreed in the Contract, payment shall be madie in US dollars or the currency set forth in the Setler’s proposal. Seller
reserves the right to rquine Paymens Milostonss of require ooe or more irrevacable, nneonditionsl, letiess of credit payzble at
sight (“Payment Security™), without any set-off,and in the oumronoy agreed in the Contraci{or on the face of the purchase order), Inn
1he ovent Buyer requests payment by credit card, Seller at its option may add u 3% suxcharge to the applicable Contract Price for
processing foes associated with credit card transactions.

7.2 In addition to other Conteact remedias, Huyer shall pay interest to SE"H ot the rato nf 1,5% per mnlh (or fmction thereof),
ot to excoed the lesser of 18% per annum or the amount d by A Te Law, an-all smounts oot timely peid
in aecordance with the Contract,

7.3 If applicable, each Payment Security dhall be irrevocable u.nd uuwndltme and ellow for pro-rata pryments for partial
Deliveries, otkier charges {e:g., storsge, expert shi and all nmet due to Seller
under the Contract. Each Payment Security shall be: {i) issued or wnﬁrmed by a primary is fomal benlk that I
m:mphbln to Seller; (if) paynble at the counters of such bank, (Ih) npaned 30 days foom thu Contract effective date; and (iv)
remain in offect voti] the Jatest of 90 days after the Jatest of Bervices, or recolpt
by Seller of fual payment. Buyer shall make relevent adjustments in the P:ymmt Suwmy (inchuding increasing amounts or
validity period, and incloding in sccordance with, the changes egreed in the Coatract) as required to fulfill its payment obligati

Agenda #11

effective date of termination, plu! a'reasonable margin percenlage in relation 1o such costs:and experses, which wargin percentzge
ghalk not be lower than the margin percenlage spplicable to the overall Cotfract; or (i) for Contracts based on payment milestones
Buyer shall pay Saller (l) all auwunlsducuuder the. Contract for wmplemd milestones, plus (b} all costs and expenses inourred
by Seller in th work d in reletion to i plus a reasonnble margin percentaga in rolation
to such costs and axpenseu, which marpin percontage skall not ot bé lower than the margin percentage lppllcable to the overall
Contract, In cormection vmh hulh ({} and (i), Buyar shall alin ply Seller the costs and expenses inowred by Seller as a direct
resuit of the termi the costy erdor disputes or Claims.

10.3 FBuyer faila to pay eny outstanding undispuied invoice as set forth in the Contract, or fails 10 jssus the Paymest Securlty
within the time agreed, Seller, upon a 15-day notice to Buyer, may suspeod pelformanbe aud Delivery, Any cost incurred by
Seller as & result of such suspension (including storsge, stand-hy costs, demobilization acd re-mobilization cosis) shail be payrble
by Buyer ypon sutanission of Seller's invoices. Pegformance of Sellers obligations shell be extended for a period equaling the
period of Buyer's failure to meet its payment obligations, plus such additional time as may be reasonshly necessary fa overcomo
thie effect of such payment delay. I suspension for  Buyer's ﬁ:iluze to pay mlmdupuled invaice or failure ta isenc thePayment
Security exceeds 15 days, Setlar may at is sofe oplicn tlic applicable Contract for cause and Buyer shail
also pay Ssiler (he costs-and expenses acurred by Ssller as a diract rosult of the tenmination, including the costs clated with
vendor disputes or Clalms, plus & reasonsble margin porceatage in relation to such costs and expenses.

104 With a 20-dey written prior notice, Buyer may elect to suspend perfarmance of the Conbrast for p maximum cumulative
petiod of 90 days, after which Seler may lerminate the Coatractsnd Adiclo 10,2 shal) apply. In lhe event ofmxpemlun undey this
Aticle 104, Bnycnhallnlmpaynll mssnunbls expenges.incured by Seller in ‘with th ding without

expenses for fea lon, stand-by coats, demnhll.mﬁnn/mmebi.lmﬁnn, and costs of storage, The
schedule for Selles’s obligations shall be extended for 8 perod of time easonably necassary to pvercome the effects of such
suspension.

11, COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, CODES AND STANDARDS

11.1 The Contrast Prics is based on Sel]er Gm\lps design, manufachers, l.u'dng. nndDelthy of the Products, Parts and Services
purauant te: (1) its design criteria, and p dures and quality sssurance program; (if) tkose portious of

vrder the Contract, within 15 busineas days of Sellers notification that such adjustment Je necessary. Seller will not have an
obligation 1o begin performance untll the Psyment Security, or he reguived adjustment thereof, has become operative,

3. TAXES AND DUTIES

B.1 Seller ghall be respomsible for and shell pay wheo due end payable.all Seller Taxes, aud Buyer shall be responsible for and
stinll pay all Buyer Taxes, The Contract Price does not inolude any Buyer Taxes. 'I‘hu:fme, if any such taxes mapplieab]e, ihey

fndustry spetifications, codes, and stendards in offect ns of the date of entering into the Contraci rs are specificd tn the Contract;
(1) Applicable Law; and (iv) ey mutvally sgreed-upon written terms and specifications set forth in the Contract,
12 ith any ather p of this Contract, the parties shdl at all hnm oamply with Applicable Law in the

performance of the Contraot, oxeept for Suller ta the extent that such
1aws of the United States orany European Union laws.

11.3 Seller is entitled to en equitable adjustment to the Contract Price and tho Duthy schedu]e o mﬂnat any add:hunul costs
mdoq:ﬁlmpa:lincumdbySallerOmnplsamul!ofnchmym i Law. or and

ez, or violates, the

will be added to the Contrast Price. For U.8, gales and use tax, and in other jurisdictions whers Buyer may chanpes in 1he ml:rpfcmhnn thereof, ansr snlt:rlng into the Contrect, In the event amy-such change prevents Seller

\! ilar taxi ifB s Group ﬁom bl without t ing Applicable Law or makes Seller's execution of its ob ligations
les o i Ba Syl i igpoc el providon » sl pay gt Derfieats o Sl burd or 4 d, Seller shall also have the right to withdraw its Proposal or terminats the Contract
2. 17 the Applicable Laws require the Contraot to bo subject to stamp duty, fee, or Buyer shall bo ible for the  without any lisbility,

roquired formalities and bear the related costs. Buyer shafl retum to Seller & copy of the registration centificato or n rogistered copy
ufmeCnuml:twimin lodlyu from tha due datc required by said Applicable Laws to register or pay for such stamp duty, fee; or

to ths Appliceblo Laws of the cauntry in which Buyer has requested Soller to provide Servioes, Seller may
be required to he rogistered Jocally, in which case, Sellor shal) perform the Servives. and inveice for them with the intervention of
ita relevant beanch or permanent establishmeat,

8.3 If Buyer is required to deduet or withhold any Seller Taxes ﬁ:vm lh-: Comncl Pnee, Buy:ralull {1) give at least 30 days’
notice to Seller that Buyer will withhold, {2) make afl bl tax from paymenis to Seller,
in apcordance with Applicable Laws and any applicable bilateral uanvmunns Bgeinst dm.lbie taxation, and (3) provide to Seller,
within 30 days from payment, the official recolpt issued by the competent goyerament authority to which the Setler Taxes have
been paid, or an alternative document aceepishle (o the roleyant tax authorities, . If Buyer requires tax mi{deme certificates or
other documeniation fram Seller 1o apply for any exemphed or reduced tax regime, Seller shall submit the certifivates

llA Unless otherwise agreed in the Contract, Sellor shall be responsible for timely cbinining the permits, licenses, snd

0s required for Seller Group ta meet the requirements of the Coutract, except that Buyer shall bs respansible for

mnaly n‘bl.ahhag any required pennila. licenm, and lutlwriaadm that can on]y be abtained by Buyer Group. Buyar and Spller
shall p other in obtaining the required

11.5. Buysr agrees that it will not sel, distribute, disclose, release or otherwise fransfer any jtem or teehuical date provided under
this Cootmet to: (i) any country designated 83 a "State Sponsor of Tzmodsm™ by ths [1.8. Dy £ State inchuding, for this
Agreemenl, Lhe oustries of Cuba and Noxth Korea (i) any cotity located io, or owned by aa =nuty focaled in, 8 "State Sponsor of
Temarism" ¢ountry or Cuba arNonh Kores, (ﬂ.l] the region of Crimea or {iv) any pesson or entity: listed on the "Entity List" or
"Denied Persons List" muintaiced by the U.S. D of Ci the list of "Specifically Designated Nationals and
Blncked Persons” msintained by the U.8. D of Treasury or any other applicable prohibited party list of tio US

upan Biryar's written eeuest. I€ Buyer, nder the Applicable Laws of any country other than Selle’s country of incorposation or in -

whith Seller bes a branch, deducfs or withholds Seller Texes or fails ta comply with the requiremenix of this clause, Buyer shall
pey additional amounts to Seller so that Seller recgives tho full amount of the Contract Price, as thaugh no such Suller Taxes had
been deducted or withheld,

8.4 If Buyer benafits fram any tay, fea.or dirty exemption which s applicable to Sellez or Seller's Groop, Buyer agrecs to provide
Seller, without charge md before ﬂu fulluwmg a5 sppiicable: (1) mbn:mg inta t‘ha Cuntmcl, (2) ‘before invoicing, or (3) bafors any
uﬂm- relevml event, d to the the i Iogsﬂm with
on the Bnycr ghall promptly mfmm Seller in wnhng about the vovocation, :xpuy or othet
thange of the oxemption, If Seller is dunied the exemption betause of a fiilfure of Buyer, Seller shall bs entitled to invoice and
Buyar shall pay promptly the applicable tax, fee or duty.
8.5 When Buyer arranges the export or intra-E nion ("EU") ity shiy Buyer will provide to Seller, free of
charge and withln 90 deys (or, in tha case of axpcm fmm the U.S., 30 days), evidence (obim.nad from Buyer's farsvarder) of
tho

This clause will apply regardless of the legality ofsuch 8 transaction under local lnw. Bn:epl a3 otherwise agreed in
wmngbmweenihnpma;,ucb?myshaﬂhe ible for obtaining and mosintsini jon required for its
performanis under this Contract {including the transfer any {tem or technical data under this Cunh'alal],mcl:nnponhnensq
import Iso:w, exchange permit or other required govemment expert or import authorization. Bach Pacty shall provide the
reasonable assistance necessary for the ciber Party fo secure end comply with such authorizalions as may be required. Neither
Party shall be Hable if-any govemment export authorization is delayed, d«med. sevoked, restiiciod or not woewed despite

reasoneble effors by (he Party, Additionally, such delay, denial, r il gbail aot itute 8 breach of this
Agreement.

Buyer shall not use any items sold : der for any military o resell them for such purpose,

12. ENVIRONMENT, HEALTIL, SAFETY AND SECURITY (SHSS)

121 B\lyuml.[uhllllmm necessary to provide a safs, healthy and seours work envi 1ncluding i

or intra BU mhlmdnmmlhﬂmafmmh tax and customs
anthoritics. Bailing the sbove, Seller shall be entitled to invnics Buger the appliceble VAT, LS. salesml 30 Lax, Of Smitar Gaxes.

9. ASSIONMENT, NOVATION & SUBCONTRACTING - Buyer may assign or novate the Contract, in full or in part end
inchuding through change of ewnership, only with the prior conseat of Seller, whick corsent shall not be unreasonebly dalayed or
withheld, provided that Seller shall be entitled to withhold such consent only for demonstrable reasons. if tho assipnes/novates
Iscks adequate Snancial capability, is a competitor or potential competitar of Seller or its Affitintes, causes Seller Group o be in
hreach of Applicabls Law, and/or doss not meet Seller's code of ethics. Seller may assign or novate to third partiea the Comtreot, in
full or in part, only with the prior consent of Buyer, which consent shall nat be unreasonably delayed or withheld, provided that
Soller may, without Buyar's conseut: (1) essign or novate the Cantract, In full or in part, to one e mare Affiliates of Seller; and (i)
e3sign mny receivables dus h!mmd:x 1o one or mare Affiliates of Seller, The parties-agrea to execute such documeuts s may be

to effect ﬂ:n or In the event of @ novation or assignment by Buyer. Buyer shiall couse
the /e provids addilionel payment security mt Sellers reasonzble request Any sssignment or novation in
viplation of the abave ahn!.l ba vaid and without effect for the other party, Nothing hercin zhall restrict Seller from sabcontrecting
portions of its work, provided that Seller remain: le to Buyer for perfi of sueh work.

10, TERMINATION AND SUSPENSION

L E|t'ﬁur pntly may nmmnau this Ccu.lmcl ﬁ:r dnﬁmit if; (i} any proceeding is brought against the other party, voluntarily or
y Iaws, or {f the other party ia unzble to pay {is.dobts when dus, fo the
extent permitted Ivy Appliceble Law; or ([1) :.‘ua other pm)l oommits - material breach of this Contract, which dogs not otharwise
bave a specified contractual temedy, and fails o curo the bresch within 30 days of notice from the non-breachng paty, or if it is
not possible to cure such breach within 3¢ days, falls fo commence to ture the breach within 30 days of such noHee or fails to

for Selley Group personnel, Buyer shall inform Seller of any known risks, hazards, or nhlngpd

conditiens impacﬂ.ng worker healih, safety or the environment, including the presence or potentiel presencs of Hazardons

Materials, and shall provids relevant information, including safety data sheats; sita security plans, risk essessments and job hazand
ses.

12.2 To evaluate risks nssociated with the provision of Services and performance under this Aticle, Buyar shail pravide Soller
Group with reasonahle access to roview the Slie and related equipment. IF Seiler's work at the Site Is subject to local, stato or
nationsl EHS legal requi that are not by available, Buyer shall notify and provids capies of same ta Sellar,

123 ¥ Seller or Seller’s representative belisves in good faith that Site conditions, Selter sportat dati
provisians, or the ections of others threaten the hralih, safely, or seourity of Sellcr Growp personnel or the- mvuonment, Seller or
its representatives may, in addilion 1o other righta or remedies availsble, STOP WORK, evecuate tome or all of iis personnel,
puspend pl:ﬂ'armancu of all or my part of the Cantract, and/or remotely perform or upervise wark. If Sallee axercizes its sights
undey this provision, # shell give prompt notice to Buyer, and the parties shall wark cooperatively to covect the conditions or
actions pmmplmg the STOP WORK. The parties agres thare ghall be no retalintion taken againgt any person who invokes their
right under this provision to STOP WGRK. Any delay resulting from Seller Group's exervise of its rights under this Article shall
constitute an txcusable dslay,

12.4 To the ful] extent permitted by Applicable Law, Buyer agrees that it is the generator, and skall be solely responsible for the
storage, n-mspomum and disposal of =l Hazardous Malerinta ar wasta related ta of arising from the performance of Services at

Buyer Group sites, Including anymuved from Sell.st's Frior ta the 3 fon end disposal of waste materials by

Buyer, Seller shall praperly handl inl mmuun; from thu Services in nccondance with 4ppliceble

Law and Bny:; writton requiroments, If' Sel!er Group it may suspend wark pending Buyer
of the ¢ it

thercafter. continne diligent efferts to complete the cure as soon as reasonably possible. In the event of & ination by Buyer
under this Article 10.1, Sefler shall reimburse Buyer the diffirence between thal portion of the Coatract Price allocable to the
terminated scope sad the aotus) smounts ressonebly incunred by Buynr (] enmp!u!e such terminated soope; and Buyer shall psy to
Seller the portion of the Contract Price alicesbln to Prod: d andfor d, and amounis for Services
performed, before the effective date of farmination, Saild amounls shdl be caloulated using the spplicable Contract rates, or in the
abgenco of such rates, pt Seller’s then-ourrent standard time end matedal rates. In the event ihere BT lgzud-upon Contract
mileslones, saiil amounts shall be caloulated i with the mill schadule for and the Contract
rates for work toward milestones not yet achieved.

10.2 Buyer may terminate the Contract (even in part) with a 20-day prier written nolica for raasons other than those set forth in
Arficle 10,1, in which case Buyer shall pay Seller's charges in accardance with the Coatract termination schedule; or if no such
schedule exists: (i) Buyer shall pay Seller all casts and expenses incurred by Seller in connection with work pezformed beforo the

any
If eny Seller eqmpment or Buyer eqtﬁpmnt dcstui«l for a Soller froility is cantaminated
whh[-huduusMwans.Buyershxlllsmmsuln { mdmmmmglliudwume
condition: recsived to ellow for its safe handling and li 'th Applicabl Law, If sy such Hezardous
Materials cause an increase in Seller's eost or fima, Seller shall beﬂmtlerl to an equitable adjustment in price and schedule.

13, ADDITIONAL BRSS PROVISIONS APPLICABLE T0 SBRVICES

13.1 Seller Group persannel shall not ba required to work in excess of any time restriction prescrited by Applicable Law. Seller
Group personnel will have at least ono day of rest in any seven consecutive days; provided, the parties may agrecupon excaptions
consistent with Seller’s working tivoe policy,

13.2 Buyer shall provide medical oare and facilities at the Sito consistent with & iona! industry standads, If Seller Groop's
personnel require urgeat medical sttention, Buyer ghall make its medical facititics svailuble to such persons ssnecessery. To the

14



COOPER |55

extent Buyer camnot supply necessary urgent medical afiention at the Site or £ny Buyar Graup's sits or while working offshore,
Buysr ghall provide for transport of Seller Group's personnel and sceess of such persome] to the nearest suitsble urgent sare
fucility. For offshore or renole work, Hnym shall be responsible for the medical evacnation of Seller Group's persanne] from the
Sita to the & point on the tand oz Buyee's desi) medical services provider,

13.3 Buyer ghall transport Seller Group's: personnsl, equipment sud materials, including medi-vao, 10-and from all offshore
facations and to such other job Smu as agrted. in complisace with Appliceble Law-and international lndumyahmmds regarding
qualified safe Buyer [roup agrecs o make such equlpmwt “and information relating to
{ts operation and mainianance mﬂe’blo to Seller for review, Buyer shall pravide pesonal protective equipment required during
use of Buyer provided trausporintion to and fiom the offshare work and such other specielized equipment a3 agrecd batween the

13.4 Buyer shall provide, at no cost w0 Seller, ancnmmodmnn and m&mﬂs for Seller Group's pencnnel which offers a
reasonabile degres of comfod, is f dards and {s at least 0 that furnished to

Buyer's and technicel p internet ta Seller Group's
personnel at said sccommodations.

14. CONFIDENTIALITY

Uslr:l
1. Buywr shall provide and comp

l4 1 "Confidential lnfmmlunn" means prieing far.Parts, Products, and Su'wcll, nndl'nt mﬁ)munun tlnt is desl,gumd in wr.lmlg
or " ctary™ at the time of discl or orally desj| or and

wnﬂng within ten days after oral discl Confidontial shall not include information lhxt s or bneomu

generally available to the public other than from disclosure by the receiving party’s Group, {il) is or besomes available to the

mﬂvmgpnrty’s Group nnnnnn-annﬂdmhalbulsfmma source nlhﬂlhnnlheduﬂla&lng party and, after due inquiry, that source

is mot subject to & conlid to the disclosi 1g party; or (u.l) is mdq:mdenﬂy d.eveloped by the receiving party's

Group without referonce to the disclosi my’sf‘ fidentl written d

14.2 The partics shall; (i) nae, reproduce, or disclose the other party’s Confidential only in. with the
Contract and pemitted use(s) and mllnlaunwe of Products, Parts nnd Services; (i) take mmnlblg measures to-protest the
ity, hod prevent d use of the C and (iff) In partieular, not disclose
Confidential Infirmation to the olher pnny‘s competitors.

143 A party may disclose Confidential Information: (7} to any mambar of its Grouy who hss & aecd to know to perform the.
Contract or usz and maintain Produéts, Parts, or Services and wha is hound in writing to confldentielity obligations end use
restrictions at legst as restrictive us in lh:5 Contract; and GGi) ta comply with a legal obligation, but only afler pramptly notifying
Lhe disclosing pacy of §12 disclostre obligation so that the disclosiog party may snek an app-npdzte proteclive order, Buyer shall
ot disclose Confidential Information to Seller anless required for Setter to perform under his Contract, Buyer wartmts 1hat it has
the xight to disclose the information and shall Indemnify Seller Group from eny Claims er damapes resulting from lmproper
disel

14.4 Neither party shall make my public sonouncemeat about any aspect of the Contract or relsted documents or information
without prior written approval of the other party,

14.5 The confidentlality and usa reatrictions of this Arficle 14 shall survive any termination of the Contract for ten years. Bach
party shall Indemnify the other for filurs to comply with this provision.

15, INTELLRCTUAL PROPBRTY

15,1 Seller shall Indemnify Buyer from any rightful Claims of thin! partics that the Prodacts or Parfa manufactured by Selter or
1is Affiliates Infringe any utility pateat of the U.S., EU, or the country of Initial instailation (if gel forth in the Comtract), provided
that: (i) Buyer promptly uotifies Seiler in writing of any sush claim; (ii) Buyet makes no admission of liabitity and docs not tike
auy position edverse to: Seller regarding such claim and gives Sziler nuﬂ:m‘:y. at Saller's mqmno. fa| direct and control all defense,

and (iii} Buyer provides Setler with full discl that may be

required ta defend any such claim,

15.2 Seller shall have no abligation or lisbitity with respect 1o any claim based upon: (i) any Products, Parts or Services that have
heen allered, modified, or revised; (if) the combination, operation, or use of 2oy Products, Paris or Services with olher products or
services when such contbination is part-of soy allegedly infringing subject matter; (i) failure of Buyer Group to implement any
update provided by Seller Group thet wauld have prevented the elaim; (iv) unauthorized use-of Produsts, Parts or Scrvices,
including without limitation & breach of (he provisions of the Contrsct; ar (v) Products, Parts or Services mads or petformed to
Buyer Group's specifications,

153 Should any Products, Paris ar Servicas hecoms the sabject of 2 claim, Selter may at its option: {fy procure for Buyer the right
to continue using the Product, Fart or Sarvice, or portion thereef} (i1} modify or replace it in whale ar in pect to make it non-
nfringing; or (jii} failing (i) or (i1), ke back Products or Parts, discontinue Services, and refund any fees received by Seller
atér{buleble to the infringing Product, Part or Service.

15.4 THE FOREGOING STATES SELLER GROUP'S ENTIRE AND EXCLUSIVE LIABILITY FOR ANY INTELLECTUAL
AND INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY RIGHTS INFRINGEMENT.

15.5 Each party shall retain ship of wll C: ial and i property il hed prior la ibe negotiations of
the Contract, Any and sll now intellectual property conceived, oreated or provided by Seller Group under tha Conlsact, whother
alone or with sny contribution from Buyer Oroup, shall bo owned exclusively by Seller ot ather members of Sallsr Geomp, as the
case may be. To the extent that Buyer Graup may acquire any tight or interest in'such new intellectual property, Buyet imuvocably
assipng, and aprees to assign end/or cause other members of Buyer Group to mxgn. all guch nghﬁs and interests in such new
intellectual property ss instructed by Seller, and to excente i and-other d; as Yy to achieve this
result. To the extent permissible by Jaw, Buyer Group weives any moral rights it acquites in any such new. iniellectnal property,
Sel]aruhnllymtBny:rusenmm utiliza Sallor's intellectual proporty embedded in the Products or Parts solely for standard uge,
npmuon_ and maintenance of the Producls/Paris IryBuyer. Such lizenge shall not give Buyor the siglit lo manufactire sadfor have

d such arts (o the sxtent such will result in new Preducts/Parts.

15,6 I Soller provides any Producis that are softwere, including SaaS (Software a2 2 Service), erbedded software, or softwere
that is installed on Buyer Group's equipment, the terme of the sanexed Software License Addendem, shall apply. If there is any
conflict between these Terms and Conditions sud the terms af the Software License Addendum, the terms of the Software License
Addendum shall prevail.

15.7 Buyer agrees (hat Seler may create, receive, maintuin, transmit and oltrerwise have atcess to meshine, techmical, system,
usage and related information, including, but et limited to, information sbont Buyer's praducts, services, systems and software,
that & i pathered periodically to facilitate the provision of Products, Pans, Services, olhar support, consulting, tralning and olker
services to Buyer (if any), and to verify compliance with the terms of this Contract, Seller and its Affilistes may nse snch
infarmation 1o provida, develop er improve their prodacts or services.

16. INDEMNITY, LIMITATION OF LIAHILITY, AND INSURANCE The provisions.of Article 16 shall apply to the maximum
extent permitied by Applicable Law aod, unless otherwise exprossly stated, prevail over any conflicting clauses.

16.1 (i) Seller agrees to Indenmify Buyer Group fram and against-any and all Claims for bodily injury, illness, or death suffered
by any Seller Group's personoel, and/or. for damage to or loss of any propetty of any 8eMer Group member (wlmher owned, hired,
or leased, but excluding property [eased to Buyer Group).arsing out of o in cammection with the Contract, REGARDLESS OF
CAUSB QR ACTION. (ii) Buyer agrees to Indemaify Seller Group from and against any and all Clalms far bodily injury, illness,
or death suffered by any Buyer Group's pesonne), and/or for demage o or lass of amy propedy of any Buyer Group member
(whothor owned, hired, or leased, and including the Products and Parts (after Delivery), the Sile, and amy fuclitics or propety
thereon}, nrising out of or in connectionwith the Contract, REGARDLESS OF CATISE OR ACTION.

16.2(j) Seller agrees to Indemnify Buyer Gronp from and against any rightfil Claims of third parties. on account of bodily injury,
illnesa or-death, or damage Lo or loss-of property, to the extent resulting directly fram tha negligence ufSuII:rlep in connection
with performance of the sttivitics under this Conteact, (il) Buyer agrees to Indemnify Selier Group from and against any rightful
Claims. of third parties on gccount of bodily injury, illness or death, or dzmage 10 or lass of property, (o the oxtent resulting
directly from the negligence of Buyer Group in cormestion with the sctivities performed under this Contract, (jii) In the ovent the

Agenda #11

injury or damage to third parties 34 caused by the’ jomz or concurrent nogligenos of tha parties or their respeetiva Groups, cach
party shall bear such injury cr damage its Group’s negli| For the avoidance of doubt, no bers of either
party’s Group shall be considered third parties and, ﬁ)rpu:rposu of Sclter’s indemnity obligation fn Article 16.2(i), no pan oﬁhe
Site or any property or facilities thereon shall be considered as third party property, nd the Site qwner end its

and ghall not be considered third parties. The it mlhnsArﬂchlﬁ?.ﬂmllapply
only if the indemnified party: (') promplly notifies the other in writing of tha third pasty claim; (i) makes no admission of
lisbility, does nol teke any pmilm adverse fo the other party and gives such other party's authority w direct and control all
defense, setilement and compromise nagotiztions; and (it) provides the other party with foll disclomme and assistance 8s may be
reasonably required to defind such claim,

16.3 Except only as provided in Article 16,1(i) but notwithstanding anything else to the contrary hesein, in the event the Site is
offshote, Buyer assumes sole responsibility for and sball Indemnify the Sefler Group (ia the maximnm extent permitied under
applicable law) from and sgainst my and all Claims ssserted by or in favor of any person or pardy resulting from pallution,
conlamination or blow-aut of any kind and including costs of poliution control, mm\lnl. spills, leakage, and cleag-up, The above
indeomity sppli :GARDLESS QF CAUSE OR ACTION and even if the clgim iz an-accaunt of any defect in the Products,
Parts or Services; but it shall net apply to surface polulion or spillage of fuels, lubricants, sewage or garbage to the extent such
f\l::su pn%luﬁms ar spillage orighnates fram Seller Group's property while such property is in Séller Group's =ale care, custody

tontrol,

164 EXCEPT ONLY FOR SELLER'S CBLIGATIONS IN ARTICLES 8.1, 15, 16.1{i), AND 112 (T3 THR EXTENT OF
FINES AND PENALTIES IMPOSED BY A GOVERNMENT AUTHORITY AS A RESULT OF SELLER’S VIOLATION OF
APPLICABLE LAW), SELLER GROUP'S TOTAL LIABILITY FOR ANY AND ALL CLAIMS OF ANY KIND,
REGARDLESS OF CAUSE OR ACTION, ARISING OUT OF OR RELATED TO THE CONFRACT, OR ITS
PERFORMANCE OR BREACH, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION WARRANTY AND TERMINATION, SHALL NOT
UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES EXCEED: (T) IN THE CASE OF CLAIMS RESULTING FROM THE PROVISION OR
FAILURE TO PROVIDE, OR FROM THE USE OR FAILURR 70 USE PRODUCTS OR PARTS, THE CONTRACT PRICE
ALLOCABLE TC THE PRODUCT AND/OR PARTS GIVING RISE TC THE CLAIM; AND (IF).IN THE CASE OF CLAIMS
RESULTING FROM THE PROVISION OR FAILURE TO PROVIDE SERVICES, THE CONTRACT PRICE ALLOCABLE
TQ THE SERVICES GIVING RISE TO THE CLAIM. SELLER GROUP SHALL HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR ADVICE OR
ASSISTANCE GRATUTTOUSLY PROVIDED BY SELLER GROUP BUT NOT REQUIRED PURSUANT TO THR
CONTRACT. ALL SELLER GROUP'S LIABILITIES SHALL TBRMINATE AT THE BND OF THE RELEVANT
WARRANTY PERIOD, EXCEPT FOR CLATMS THAT HAVE BEEN TIMBLY COMMENCED BY BUYER IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONTRACT,

16,5 UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR ANY
CONSEQUENTIAL LOSS. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TG THE CONTRARY, AND EXCEPT ONLY TO THE
EXTENT OF AGREED LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AND ANY PREDETERMINED TERMINATION FEES DUE TO SELLER.
UNDER THE CONTRACT, SELLER SHALL INDEMNIFY BUYER GROUP FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL
DIRECT OR INDIRECT CLAIMS FOR CONSEQUENTIAL LOSS OF SELLER GROUP; AND BUYER SHALLINDEMNIFY
SELLER GROUF FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL DIRECT OR INDIRECT CLAIMS FOR CONSEQUENTIAL
LOS§ OF BUYER GROUP REGARDLESS OF CAUSE OR ACTION,

16.6 NOTWITHSTANDING ARTICLE 16.2(f), IN THE EVENT BUYER GROUP PROVIDES PRODUCTS OR PARTS TO A
THIRD PARTY OR USES SELLER'S PRODUCTS/PARTS AT A FPACILITY NOT OWNED BY BUYER, OR THE
SERVICES ARE PERFORMED AT A FACILITY NOT OWNED BY BUYBR, BUYER SHALL INDEMNIFY SELLER
GROUP FOR AND AGAINST ANY LIASILITY ARISING OUT OF CLATMS MADE IN EXCESS OF THE LIMITATIONS
AND EXCLUSIONS SET KORTH I¥ THE CONTRACT, REGARDLZSS OF CAUSE OR ACTION, IN THE EVENT BUYER
ASSIGNS OR NOVATES THR CONTRACT, IN WROLE OR DY PART, SUCH ASSIGNEE OR NOVATER SHALL BB
BOUND BY THE SAME TERMS OF THIS CONTRACT, AND BUYER HEREBY WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO CLAIM,
'WHETHER IN TORT, AT LAW OR OTHERWISE, FOR DAMAGES OR LIABILITIES OF ANY KIND IN EXCESS OF THE
LIMITATIONS AND EXCLUSIONS SET FORTH IN THE CONTRACT,

16.7 Buyer and Seller each covanant and.agrea to suppord 1heir mutus! inderonity obllgahmu under Article 16 by procuring and
majntaintng, at the indemmifying party's solu oxpense, insurmce polictes meeting the fotlowing requirements: (i) Workess.
Cumpmsltlwﬁmplvyw‘l Liability as per Appli Law; (i) C General Lisbility: Combined Singte Limite for
Bodily Injury end Property Damsge $1, 000,000 (ons millian) per occurence and §$2,000,000 (two million) in the sggregate (orits
equivalent in another relevant currency), which may bo satisfied through a combination of underlying and excess coverages. The
parties ggree lhat, ta the exiet of tha jnderanifying party's ligbility and indemmity uhllg:huns under this Contract, the
indomnifying party’s General Liability policies shall include the indemmified party Group as additional ms\u'd<{>,,‘9> contain.
blanket contractual liability coverage, be primary, and receive no i from any palicies ar on
bohalf of the indemmified party. Each party, on requesi, shalt provide to the other pary fusmwmes centificates ovidencing the
sforementianed limils and [orms of inawrance. Buyer and Sellor shall each amange for any of their respeotive insurance palicies
hereunder ta contain provisions whereby, te the extrnt of each parly's1iability and indemnity obligations under this Contract, their
insurers waive thelr rights of subrogation against the uther pariy’s Group, as well 2s the other party’s respeative insurers,

17, NO NUCLEAR USE - The Produsts, Pacts and/er Services are not intended or suthorized for use in connection with any
nuclear facility or activity, and Huyar warrants (hat it shall nat use, or pertit others 1o ose, Products, Parts and/or Sorvices in
connsction with or for any such s without the advaace wiitten consent of Seller. 1F, in breach of the foregoing, any such
usc nceurs, Scller herehy disclaims any-and-all liabitity for eny muclear or olher damage, injury, or contamination REGARDLESS
OF CAUSE OR ACTION. In sddition ta any other rights of Seller and lo the msxi oxlent itted vnder Applicable Law,
Buyer assumes sole responsibility for, and shail ify Seller Group from and agafust, auy and all Claims rsserted by oF in
favor of any person or party resulting from any nuclear or other damage, tojury, or contaminstion REGARDLESS OF CAUSE
OR ACTION, Conseat of Seller to a1y vse i connection with say wuclear faility or activity, if any, will be conditioned upon

dditional tzmas and conditions that Ssiler ines to be for protection against nuclear iability,

18. ADIXENDA - IF eny Products/Pasts include execntable binary vode, or if Sellsrpmvidu BOY vemote dllgnmﬂe, mhl molu,
training, or other special Services, tha tayms of the respective annexed Cyt Services Addendum, Remol

Services Addeadura, Reatal Teols. Addendum, Trainin, sod/er olher eddendum shall apply. If these i 1s my canflict
between these Terms and Conditions and the terms of any spplicsble addendum, the terme of the applicsble sddendum shall
prevall,

19. GOVERNING LAW - This Contmset shall be govemed by and construed in accordanes with the lsws of i) the State of New
York, If Seller in incorporated in the U.S.; or (i) England and Waies, if S¢ller is incorporated cutside the U.S., exoluding in any
vase conflict of law rules.

20, D[SPUTE R_SOLUTIGN Any dispute arising cut of or in connsclion with this Contract shall by roferred to settlement

under the t Chamber of C: {ICC) Mediation Rules, without prejudica to either party's right fo

seck emergency, injimctive, or conservalory measures of pmtection at any time, IFany such dispula bes not been settled within 60

days following the filing of a Request for Mediation (or suoh other petiod of tima 89 may be reasansble under the circumstances

or agreed in writing), the dispute shall be finally settled in accordance with the ICC Rules of Arbitration by ane or more
arbilrators appointed under the said Rules. The seat, or legal place, of erbitrstion shall be {i) Houston, Texas USA,

21. GENERAL CLAUSES

21.1 Excepl a3 othorwise expressly provided with regard to the members of each party's Group, none of the tams herein o
intended to be enforced by thind parties under the United Kingdom Contrects (Rights of Third Partles) At (1999), where
apphmbla. Buyer and Seller shall be entitled o modify, vary, amend and/ar extinguish such rights without the consent of eny
third parties or member of cither party's Group,

21.2 This Contrsct represenis the eotire agreement between the pasties imd vo modiication, emendment, rescission, waiver ar
other change shall be binding on sither party umless agreed ta in wriling by their sothorized representatives, Fach party aprocs that
It has notrelied on, o bezn induced by, any representations of the other party not caniningd in the Contgact,

21.3 The invalidity in whole or in past of any part of this Contact ehall not affect the validity of the remainder of the Contract. In

15



Agenda #11

COOPER |z

the event any provision of thfs Contract is held invalid or unenforceabls, only the invalid-or unenforceable part of the provision
shall be severed, leaving intact and in full forcs and offeet the remainder of the seatence, olsuse and provigion to the extwt not
held invalid or unenforceable.

22.G.5. GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS

22.1 This Asticle 22 applies only if tha Contract ia for the direct or indirect salo ts any sgeacy of the U.S. government and/or ia
funded ‘in whale or in part by any agency of the U.S, govemment. Buyer agreas that it Products, Parts snd Servicea provided by
Seller meet tho definition of "commercinl-off-the-shelf” {"COTS"} or "commetvial item* as thase ferms are defined in Federal
-Acquisition Regulation ("FAR™) 2.101. To the exteat the Buy: American Act, Trade Agreements Act, or other domestic preference
requirements are applicable fo this Contract, the:country of origin of Products/Farts s usknown vnless otherwist specifically
staled by Selter in this Contract. Buyer agtees any Services offered by Seller are exempt from the Service Contract Act of 1965

{FAR 52.222-41), The version of any rpplicable FAR olmuse listed in this Article 22 shall be the ene in effect on the effecfive dato
ofthis Centract,

22,2 If Buyer is an agency of the U.8, govemment, then as permitted by FAR 12.302, Buyer agracs that sl paregraphs of FAR
52:212-4 (axcept those listed in 12.302(h)) are repleced with these Terms and Conditions. Buyer fither egrees the subparagraphs
of FAR 52.212-5 apply only ta the extent spplicable for sals of COTS and/or commercial {lems end s appropriste for ihe
Contrrct Prica,

223 If Buyer is procuring the Products, Paris or Services as a contractor, or subcontractor at any tier, on behalf of any sgenoy of
the U8, government, then Buyer sgreen that FAR 52.212-5(g) or 52.244-6 (whichever is applicable) applies only to the extent
opplicable for sals of COTS andfor ial {lomg and as jate for the Contract Price, If the reasonablenesa of the price
cannot ba established ihrongh adequate price competition, ot if cost or pricing data should be required for any olher reason, o if a
Product, Part or Service cannot be considered & "commercial item”, Seiler may terminate the Contract without prnalty and be
reitubursed for work done befare the effective date of termination.

22.4 Beller resucves the right to reject any order from a Buyer listed oo any denied party list
COOPER MACHINERY SERVICES - TERMS.& CONDITIONS FOR SALE OF PRODUCTS, PARTS & SERVICES
Pebruary 1, 2022 COOPER MACHINERY SERVICESD

Cooper Machinery Services is an equal opportunity employer and gives all qualified applicants consideration of employment
without regard to race, color, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity,genetic information, national origin, disability
status, protected veteran status, or any other characteristic protected by federal, state, or local laws.

16



Agenda #15
1335 L. St, Ste 200
Lincoln, NE 68508
Phone: (402) 742-2600
LEAGUE ASSOCIATION of RISK MANAGEMENT Fax: (402) 476-4089
www.larmpool.org

June 30, 2025

Dear LARM Member,

Attached please find your Renewal Coverage Proposal for the 2025-26 Pool Year. This proposal
is itemized by line of coverage to represent your specific limits, deductibles, annualized
contributions and to outline LARM’s resolution credit options available for the new term.

To ensure LARM members are adequately covered, LARM is increasing overall values. Most
members are seeing property values, contents, and property in the open increases of 5%
depending on if you had a valuation of your properties in the last year. This is also being
driven by reinsurance to ensure proper coverage on catastrophic losses.

To continue the goal of pursuing a strong financial position, the LARM Board formally approved
the recommended adjustment to the 2025-26 Pool Year rate levels as follows:

" +26% rate adjustment for Property.

"+ 5% adjustment Level rates for Liability Coverages.

=  +5% adjustment for Workers’ Compensation.

Finally, the information presented in this communication packet does not include any potential
mono-line insurance placements that are not part of the formal LARM Property, General
Liability or Workers’ Compensation coverages (such as Bonds, Special Events Coverage, Liquor
Liability, etc.) In addition, please be advised that your final invoice amount may vary from the
renewal packet based on endorsements that require contribution adjustment over the next
several weeks.

As always, the LARM Board and staff are very pleased that your community will continue to
support LARM as we celebrate our 315 year of unparalleled commitment to serving our
Members. On behalf of each of us, | thank you for making our partnership a mutual success.

Sincerely,
LEAGUE ASSOCIATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT

Tracy Juranek
Customer Service Specialist/Assistant Executive Director

17



LEAGUE ASSOCIATION of RISK MANAGEMENT

Proposal For:

Effective Date:

Auburn Board of Public Works

10/1/2025

Agenda #15

COVERAGE LIMITS AND APPLICABLE DEDUCTIBLES | CONTRIBUTION

Worker’s Compensation Statutory Limits $36,496
$500,000 Employer Liability

General Liability $5,000,000/55,000,000 $29,894
Per Occurrence/Aggregate
S0 Deductible

Errors & Omissions $5,000,000/$5,000,000 $3,929
Per Occurrence/Aggregate
$2,500 Deductible

Auto Liability $5,000,000 Combined Single Limit $7,025
S0 Deductible

Auto Physical Damage 22 x Vehicles $4,448
S Varies on Deductible

Commercial Property $83,752,229 $271,522
$5,000 Deductible

TOTAL ANNUAL CONTRIBUTION: $353,314

Contribution Credit Options
180 Day Notice, 3 180 Day Notice, 2 90 Day Notice, 90 Day Notice, 90 Day
Year Year 180 Day Notice 3 Year 2 Year Notice
Commitment Commitment Only Commitment Commitment Only
Cormmitment 5% 4% 2% 2% 1% 0%
Property & Liability: | $300,977 $304,145 $310,482 $310,482 $313,650 $316,818
Componcaton: | $34.671 $35,036 $35,766 $35,766 $36,131 $36,496
Total Contribution: | $335,648 $339,181 $346,248 $346,248 $349,781 $353,314

18



Lo . Agenda #15
League Association of Risk Management

2025-26 Renewal Resolution
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-2

WHEREAS, Auburn Board of Public Works is a member of the League Association of Risk Management
(LARM);

WHEREAS, section 8.10 of the Interlocal Agreement for the Establishment and Operation of the League
Association of Risk Management provides that a member may voluntarily terminate its participation in
LARM by written notice of termination given to LARM and the Nebraska Director of Insurance at least 90
days prior to the desired termination given to and that members may agree to extend the required
termination notice beyond 90 days in order to realize reduced excess coverage costs, stability of
contribution rates and efficiency in operation of LARM; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of LARM has adopted a plan to provide contribution credits in
consideration of certain agreements by members of LARM as provided in the attached letter.

BE IT RESOLVED that the governing body of Auburn Board of Public Works, Nebraska, in consideration
of the contribution credits provided under the LARM Board’s plan, agrees to:

(O Provide written notice of termination at least 180 days prior to the desired termination date, which
date shall be no sooner than September 30, 2028. (180 day and 3 year commitment; 5% discount)

(O Provide written notice of termination at least 180 days prior to the desired termination date, which
date shall be no sooner than September 30, 2027. (180 day and 2 year commitment; 4% discount)

(O Provide written notice of termination at least 180 days prior to the desired termination date, which
date shall be no sooner than September 30, 2026. (180 day notice only; 2% discount)

(O Provide written notice of termination at least 90 days prior to the desired termination date, which
date shall be no sooner than September 30, 2028. (90 day notice and 3 year commitment only; 2%
discount)

(O Provide written notice of termination at least 90 days prior to the desired termination date, which
date shall be no sooner than September 30, 2027. (2 year commitment only; 1%)

(O Provide written notice of termination at least 90 days prior to the desired termination date, which
date shall be no sooner than September 30, 2026. (90 day Notice only)

Adopted this day of ,

Signature:

Title:

ATTEST:

Title:

Please email (customerservice@LARMpool.org) or fax (402.476.4089) the completed resolution to LARM.

19



Agenda #16
POINT C
5310 N. 99 Street, Suite 1, Omaha NE 68134
402-571-6224

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT

This agreement (“agreement”) for administrative services is made and entered into effective July 1, 2025,
by and between Point C, hereinafter referred to as the Claims Administrator and City of Auburn / Board
of Public Works, hereinafter referred to as the Plan Sponsor of the City of Auburn / Board of Public
Works Employee Benefit Plan (the “Plan™).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF:

WHEREAS, the Plan Sponsor has established a self-funded health care plan for certain of its
employees and/or their dependents (the “participants™);

WHEREAS, the Plan Sponsor of the Plan has the authority, power and duty to administer the Plan
according to its terms;

WHEREAS, the Plan Sponsor is authorized to engage the Claims Administrator to provide certain
administrative services for the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Claims Administrator is willing to provide such administrative services.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and duties set forth in this agreement,
the parties, thereto, intending to be legally bound, do agree as follows:

SECTION A: DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES OF CLAIMS ADMINISTRATOR

1.

The Claims Administrator shall maintain adequate and necessary records from information provided
by the Plan Sponsor under Section B1 herein on each Plan Participant to properly administer the Plan.
These participant records shall include, but are not limited to, the following information for each
Participant: Full name, date of birth, effective date of coverage and benefit elections.

The Claims Administrator will bond all Point C employees who handle Plan assets and will, within 30
days of a written request by the Plan Sponsor, present evidence of such bonds to the Plan Sponsor.

Subject to Section A4 of this agreement, the Claims Administrator agrees that Plan Participant
records, and the information contained therein, shall not be disclosed, or made available to persons
other than the Plan Sponsor, or its designated agents, without prior written approval of the Plan
Sponsor; provided, however, the Claims Administrator may disclose such information to its
subcontractors if necessary to perform its obligations under this agreement. The Claims
Administrator shall comply with applicable laws and regulations regarding confidentiality or privacy
of medical records and other Plan records and cooperate with the Plan Sponsor to ensure such
compliance.

Page 1 of 10 20



10.

11.

Agenda #16
The Claims Administrator shall not disclose or use Plan records for a purpose unrelated to
administration of the Plan. Absent prior written approval pursuant to Section A3 of this agreement the
Claims Administrator will disclose such information only:

(a) In response to a court order

(b) For an examination conducted by an authorized state or federal government authority
(c) To an issuer of a stop loss policy purchased by the Plan Sponsor

(d) With written consent of the Plan Participant or his or her legal representative

The participant records maintained by the Claims Administrator shall be the property of the Plan
Sponsor and shall be available for inspection by the Plan Sponsor or its designated agents, during
normal business hours.

The Claims Administrator shall provide, subject to the Plan Sponsor’s final approval, the initial Plan
document, summary plan description for the Plan, and any other documents as agreed to by the
Claims Administrator and the Plan Sponsor. In addition, the Claims Administrator will make
available all necessary forms, ID cards, and any materials necessary for the performance of the Plan.

The Claims Administrator may contract with other vendors to perform services under its agreement
for the benefit of the Plan. The Claims Administrator will be responsible for those services to the
same extent that it would have been responsible had it performed those services directly hereunder,
provided, however, professional services shall be governed by item 14 herein.

The Claims Administrator shall process and adjudicate all claims presented for payment according to
the Plan Document.

The Claims Administrator shall establish and maintain, on behalf of the Plan Sponsor, a non-interest-
bearing bank account (the “claim account”) during the term of this agreement. The Plan Sponsor
acknowledges that the Claims Administrator will release checks after notifying the Plan Sponsor of
the total dollar amount of such checks. Such checks shall be deemed approved by the Plan Sponsor
unless the Plan Sponsor promptly notifies the Claims Administrator of its disapproval. The Plan
Sponsor agrees to ensure that the group claim account contains sufficient funds to pay approved
claims for benefits under this Plan. The Plan Sponsor authorizes the Claims Administrator to prepare
checks drawn on the claim account and release such checks for the payment of claims under the Plan,
and to the extent permissible under applicable law, payment to the Plan Sponsor upon its request. The
above is the recommendation of the Claims Administrator and the Plan Sponsor may consult their
ERISA attorney for other arrangements.

The Claims Administrator shall abide by industry standards, to correctly process and pay claims for
benefits in accordance with the terms of the Plan and information provided to the Claims
Administrator by the Plan Sponsor.

The Claims Administrator shall assume no liability and shall be held harmless by the Plan and the
Plan Sponsor in complying with instructions communicated by the Plan Sponsor to the Claims
Administrator. Should the Claims Administrator have a question of whether a particular claim of
benefits should be paid under the Plan, the Claims Administrator shall contact the Plan Sponsor for a
determination of whether said claims should be paid. Thereafter, the Plan Sponsor shall provide
written instructions to the Claims Administrator as to whether to pay the claim, and if said claim
should be paid, the amount of the payment. The Plan Sponsor retains all final authority and
responsibility for the Plan.

Page 2 of 10 21



12.

13.

14.

15.

Agenda #16
The Claims Administrator shall maintain current, accurate, and complete records and files of all claim
submissions and payments to each participant for a period of at least seven years after the filings of
any information relating to such submissions and payments.

The Claims Administrator shall provide the Plan Sponsor with any reports agreed to by the parties.
These reports include, but are not limited to, the following:

(a) The “Check Register” report will be provided to the Plan Sponsor at the Plan Sponsor’s requests.

To protect Plan Sponsor assets the Claims Administrator is hereby authorized to contract for the
services of accountants, attorneys, or other professionals of the Claims Administrator’s choosing to
provide such services as the Claims Administrator may deem necessary. The Plan will be responsible
for any reasonable costs incurred in the retaining of such professional services.

The Claims Administrator will, within thirty days written notice from the Plan Sponsor, allow the
Plan Sponsor or its authorized agent to inspect or audit all Plan records and files maintained by the
Claims Administrator at the offices of Point C during normal business hours. The Plan Sponsor will
be responsible for all costs associated with the inspection or audit.

SECTION B: DUTIES & RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PLAN SPONSOR

1.

The Plan Sponsor shall provide the Claims Administrator with the necessary records of the Plan
Participants as of the effective date of this agreement. Thereafter, the Plan Sponsor shall provide the
Claims Administrator with the necessary records of the Plan Participants eligible to participate in the
Plan after the effective date of this agreement. The Plan Sponsor shall further provide the Claims
Administrator with records relating to any change that affects any Plan Participant’s benefits under the
Plan, including, but not limited to changes related to continuation coverage under the Consolidated
Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA), health plan coverage changes, and elections
to conform with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act.

The Plan Sponsor shall provide the Claims Administrator with true and accurate information
including, but not limited to, an accounting of all Plan Participants and changes set forth in Section B1
of this agreement. The Claims Administrator shall not be liable for any loss incurred as a result of any
inaccurate information furnished to it by the Plan Sponsor. The Plan Sponsor must report all changes
to the Claims Administrator within two weeks of the change. Notice of Plan Participant termination
must be given within 30 days of the termination. Credit for premiums, administrative, or vendor fees
will not be retroactive beyond two months.

The Plan Sponsor shall be solely responsible for collecting and administering all contributions to the
Plan. The Plan Sponsor shall deposit funds on a regular basis to the claim account and shall fund
amounts requested within ten business days of the request to ensure prompt payment of claims as
required by the United States Department of Labor or any other regulatory authority.

The Plan Sponsor shall be solely responsible for communicating to, and distributing to, Plan
Participants any and all information regarding the Plan, including the summary plan description for
the Plan.

The Plan Sponsor shall be responsible for complying with all legal requirements applicable to the Plan
and shall be solely responsible for satisfying any and all reporting, notice, disclosure, and filing
requirements imposed under applicable federal or state law, and all withholding, deposit and reporting
requirements of federal, state and local tax laws applicable to the payment of Plan benefits.

Page 3 of 10 22



Agenda #16
The Plan Sponsor shall be responsible for any delay in the performance of the administrative and
claims service caused by the failure of the Plan Sponsor to furnish any required information or funds
for the payment of Plan benefits.

The Plan Sponsor shall be solely responsible for complying with and remitting amounts due under
applicable escheat laws of any jurisdiction as such laws may be applied with respect to benefit
payments under the Plan.

Except as provided in Section B, #9, of this agreement or as otherwise agreed to by the Plan Sponsor
and Claims Administrator pursuant to a separate agreement, the Plan Sponsor will be solely
responsible for complying with the requirements of COBRA and the Health Insurance Portability and
Accountability Act (“HIPAA”) which may apply to the Plan. The Plan Sponsor will be liable for any
and all claims resulting from the failure of the Plan Sponsor to administer COBRA and/or HIPAA in
accordance with this agreement and applicable laws and regulations.

The Plan Sponsor may elect to have the Claims Administrator provide the following COBRA
nondiscretionary, ministerial recordkeeping and notification services on behalf of the Plan Sponsor.
Fees for this service will be shown on Exhibit A. If no fees are indicated, the Plan Sponsor will
remain solely responsible for complying with the requirements of COBRA unless otherwise agreed to
by the Plan Sponsor and Claims Administrator pursuant to a separate agreement.

(a) Generate and send initial COBRA notification to newly enrolled employees, spouses, and
dependents upon notification by employer when they first become eligible for the plan(s).

(b) Generate and send COBRA notice and election form to Qualified Beneficiaries (QB’s) upon
notification by the employer following a COBRA Qualifying Event.

(¢) Communicate COBRA elections made by QB’s to the employer.

(d) Collect QB COBRA premiums and remit appropriate balance to employer.

(e) Generate and send employer a monthly bill for COBRA services.

SECTION C: FEES

1.

In consideration of the services to be provided pursuant to this agreement, the Plan Sponsor shall pay
to the Claims Administrator the fees set forth in the fee schedule attached hereto as Exhibit “A”,
which shall not be subject to change during the first twelve months that this agreement is in effect.
The Claims Administrator guarantees to pay all applicable fees received by the Claims Administrator
from the Plan Sponsor to appropriate vendors.

The Plan Sponsor may elect to have the Claims Administrator assume responsibility for administering
claims applicable to the period prior to the effective date of this agreement. If elected, there will be an
additional fee for this service, and all terms of this agreement will apply to such claims.

The Claims Administrator may adjust its monthly and annual fees upon each anniversary date of this
agreement with delivery of such adjustment to the Plan Sponsor at the renewal presentation for the
coming contract year.

The Claims Administrator may charge the Plan Sponsor reasonable fees for the reproduction or return
of Plan records requested by the Plan Sponsor or government agencies. The Plan Sponsor shall
reimburse the Claims Administrator reasonable fees charged by medical providers and others for
information reasonably required by the Claims Administrator to perform its duties under this
agreement.

Page 4 of 10 23



10.

Agenda #16
If, during the term of this agreement, any tax other than taxes based solely on the income of the
Claims Administrator or other similar income or franchise taxes that are assessed with respect to the
earnings or revenue of the Claims Administrator, or any other assessment, shall be imposed against
the Claims Administrator as a result of the Claims Administrator performing its duties under this
agreement, the Claims Administrator will report the payment of such tax or assessment to the Plan
Sponsor and the Plan Sponsor will reimburse the Claims Administrator for the same. The Claims
Administrator will be solely responsible for all withholding, deposit and reporting requirements of
federal, state, and local authorities applicable to payments of benefit payments under the Plan.

Nothing in Section C will prohibit the Claims Administrator from performing any service not set forth
in this agreement for a reasonable fee provided, however, any such service may be provided, and any
such corresponding fee may be paid, only if agreed to by the parties in advance of performing such
service.

The Claims Administrator will bill the Plan Sponsor on the first day of each month (the “Billing
Date™) for the current month the (“Monthly Fee™) as set forth in Exhibit “A” and any other fees agreed
to by the parties, regardless of the actual vendor charge, based on the number of employees enrolled in
the Plan as of the billing date. The Monthly Fee, if not paid by the 15 day following the billing date,
shall be subject to interest on the amount of all past due fees at a rate of ten percent per annum, or if
lower, the maximum allowable rate under Nebraska state law.

If the Plan Sponsor, for any reason whatsoever, fails to make a required payment on a timely basis, the
Claims Administrator will provide the Plan Sponsor with timely written notice of its intent to suspend
the performance of services.

The Claims Administrator may also receive compensation from insurance carriers and vendor partners
in the form of trips or other cash awards based on production, profitability, or other criteria
considering all groups collectively utilizing those insurance carrier and vendor partner services and
administered by the Claims Administrator. This compensation is not directly attributable as a fee or
expense to the Plan and is estimated to average less than one half percent of the total Plan costs on an
annual basis.

Some of the contracts the Claims Administrator holds with prescription benefit management
companies (PBMs) may include contract incentives such as, but not limited to, discounts, allowances,
incentives, rebates, adjustments, and settlements. Any contract incentives, if available, will be
retained by the Claims Administrator. Any prescription claims submitted to the Plan may be
processed without regard to any potential contract incentives provided to the Claims Administrator.
These contract incentives are estimated to average less than one and one half percent of the total
health plan costs on an annual basis. Certain PBMs may also offer the Claims Administrator member
participation in their company, which may provide the Claims Administrator educational advantages
and industry insights that might prove beneficial to the overall direction of the Health Plan.

SECTION D: DURATION OF AGREEMENT

1.

The agreement will have an initial term of one year and will automatically be renewed for subsequent
one-year terms unless terminated pursuant to Section E of this agreement. If the parties cannot agree
as to the fee structure for such subsequent term, this agreement will terminate as of its anniversary
date unless the parties agree otherwise.

Page 5 of 10 24



Agenda #16

SECTION E: TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT

1.

This agreement may be terminated by either party by written notice to the other party, to be effective
as of the date set forth in said notice; provided, however, such notice must be provided no less than
sixty days prior to the end of the initial term of this agreement, or any extension thereof.

This agreement shall, at the option of the Claims Administrator, terminate or otherwise be suspended,
effective five days after providing written notice to the Plan Sponsor, if:

(a) The Plan Sponsor fails to pay the fees provided in Section C within thirty days of their due date;

(b) The Plan Sponsor becomes insolvent or files for bankruptcy protection;

(c) There is a merger, sale or consolidation of the Plan Sponsor, unless the Claims Administrator
consents in writing to continue services under this agreement with successor Plan Sponsor in
advance of such event;

(d) Any law or regulation is enacted that makes this agreement illegal or impossible to perform.

This agreement will, at the option of the Plan Sponsor, terminate, or otherwise be suspended, effective
five days after the Plan Sponsor provides written notice to the Claims Administrator if the Claims
Administrator fails to comply with the terms of this agreement. If the Plan Sponsor terminates this
agreement at any time other than the anniversary date of this agreement for any reason other than the
Claims Administrator failing to comply with the terms of this agreement, the Plan Sponsor will pay to
the Claims Administrator the Monthly Fee as of the billing date immediately preceding the date of
termination for the remaining months left in the one-year term. Within ten days of the date of
termination, the Plan Sponsor will pay to the Claims Administrator all amounts owed plus any interest
charges calculated.

Upon termination of this agreement, the Claims Administrator will process all requests for claim
payments under the Plan which were received by it and which become due and payable pursuant to
the terms of the Plan prior to terminating this agreement; provided, however, the Claims
Administrator will have no obligation:

(a) To process any such claim if the Plan Sponsor has failed to provide funds for payment; or
(b) To process requests for claim payments presented after the termination date unless the parties
agree otherwise.

Upon termination of this agreement, the Plan Sponsor will remain responsible for payment of all other
claims under the Plan.

Upon termination of this agreement or any applicable vendor agreements, the Plan Sponsor will
immediately forfeit all outstanding program incentives. These may include, but are not limited to,
Administrative Performance Arrangements, Prescription Drug Rebates, Captive Distributions, and
vendor partner incentives.

The Claims Administrator will, within sixty days of the last transaction required under this Section,
deliver to the Plan Sponsor a complete and final accounting and report of the financial status of the
Plan, together with all books and records in its possession with respect to the Plan, all claims files, and
all reports and other papers pertaining to the Plan. The Plan Sponsor will reimburse the Claims
Administrator for reasonable expenses associated with complying with this Section.

Page 6 of 10 25



8.

10.

Agenda #16
Upon termination of this agreement, the Claims Administrator will provide reasonable assistance in
transferring Plan records and related information to any successor designated by the Plan Sponsor.
The Plan Sponsor will be responsible for all costs associated with such transfer including, but not
limited to, non-standard reporting, ad-hoc reporting, accumulation and delivery services.

Upon termination of this agreement, the Plan Sponsor may agree that the Claims Administrator will
retain Plan records and process claims for benefits incurred, but not processed, before the date of such
termination. The fees for such run-out claims service will be as follows:

(a) For the first month after termination, such fee will not be greater than the Monthly Fee as set forth
in Exhibit “A”.

(b) For the second month after termination, such fee will not be greater than seventy-five percent of
the Monthly Fee as set for in Exhibit “A”.

(c) For the third month after termination, such fee will not be greater than fifty percent of the Monthly
Fee as set forth in Exhibit “A”.

(d) Any claims processed more than ninety days after the date of termination will be handled on a per
claim basis at $25.00 per claim.

Any vendor fees for run-out processing will be passed through to the Plan Sponsor based on
applicable vendor terms and conditions.

SECTION F: INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY LIMITATIONS

1.

The Claims Administrator will not be liable to the Plan Sponsor, its agents, Plan Participants, or any
other person whatsoever for any acts or omissions, with the exception of gross negligence, breach of
contract or willful or illegal misconduct on the part of the Claims Administrator relating to services
provided pursuant to this agreement.

The Plan Sponsor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Claims Administrator, its agents, and
employees, from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, liabilities, penalties, fines and
expenses, including court costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out of or in any way connected
with the performance by the Claims Administrator relating to services provided pursuant to this
agreement. Such indemnification by the Plan Sponsor will include, but will not be limited to, any and
all actual or threatened claims, suits, proceedings, or causes of action against the Claims
Administrator by any Plan Participant or beneficiary, or any other person.

SECTION G: AMENDMENTS

1.

This agreement may be amended by the Plan Sponsor and the Claims Administrator at any time by
written agreement by both parties.

SECTION H: DISPUTE RESOLUTION

1.

It is expected that any disputes or differences that may arise under this agreement will be resolved by
the parties in the usual course of business. If, however, any dispute that does arise between the
Claims Administrator and the Plan Sponsor which relates to or arises from this agreement, whatever
its nature, the parties agree to forego litigation and proceed as follows: Either party may notify the
other regarding the matter in dispute and that it wishes to begin the dispute resolution procedure.
Within thirty days after such notification, a designated executive of the Claims Administrator and a
designated executive of the Plan Sponsor will meet and confer in an effort to resolve the problem.
The parties may agree to mediation or other voluntary form of dispute resolution. If the matter is not
Page 7 of 10 26



Agenda #16
resolved within thirty days thereafter (or such further time as the parties may agree) either party may
elect to have the dispute arbitrated in the manner provided in Section H2.

Any dispute or claim relating to this agreement not resolved in the manner provided under Section H1
will be resolved by final and binding arbitration before the American Arbitration Association using an
independent panel of three arbitrators provided that the arbitrators selected have at least five years’
experience in the health care industry. In no event may the arbitration be initiated more than one year
after the date one party first gave written notice of the dispute to the other party. The arbitration will
be held in Omaha, Nebraska. The arbitrators will have no power to ignore or vary the terms of this
agreement and will be governed by the United States Arbitration Act. Results of the arbitration are
binding and final on both parties.

SECTION I: MISCELLANEOUS

Any funds deposited in the claim account received by the Claims Administrator from the Plan
Sponsor will be held on the Plan Sponsor’s behalf in a fiduciary capacity. The Plan Sponsor will have
the final responsibility and liability for payment of claims under the Plan.

This agreement will be construed and enforced according to the laws of the State of Nebraska except
to the extent that the agreement may be preempted by ERISA.

The Claims Administrator will assist the Plan Sponsor to ensure compliance with all applicable laws
and regulations.

Failure by either party at any time to enforce or require the strict performance of any of the terms or
conditions of this agreement will not constitute a waiver of such terms or conditions, modify such
provisions, or in any manner a waiver of such terms or conditions or in any manner render it
unenforceable as to any other time or as to any other occurrence.

Any specific waiver by either party of any of the terms and conditions of this agreement will be
considered as a one-time event and will not constitute a continuing waiver. Neither a waiver nor any
failure to enforce shall in any way affect or impair the terms or conditions of the agreement or the
right of either party to avail itself of its remedies.

If any of this agreement is deemed to be, or shall in fact be illegal, inoperative, or unenforceable, the
same will not affect any other provision or provision herein to any extent whatsoever.

Except as provided in Section E, this agreement will be binding upon all the parties hereto, their heirs,
successors, assigns, and legal representatives forever.

This agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts with the same effect as if all of the
parties had signed the same document. All counterparts will be construed together and will constitute

one agreement.

This agreement is the entire agreement of the parties and supersedes all prior contracts, proposals,
responsibilities, and other communications between the parties.

Page 8 of 10 27



Agenda #16
THIS CONTRACT CONTAINS AN ARBITRATION PROVISION WHICH MAY BE ENFORCED BY
THE PARTIES.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Plan Sponsor and the Claims Administrator have caused this agreement to
be effective July 1, 2025.

City of Auburn / Board of Public Works Point C
Signature Signature
Matt Wullenwaber
Printed Name Printed Name
President
Title Title

March 28, 2025
Date Date

Page 9 of 10 28



Agenda #16
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT FEE SCHEDULE

EFFECTIVE: July 1, 2025

EXHIBIT A

The administrative services agreement entered into by City of Auburn / Board of Public Works and Point C lists
below the fees as required by The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). The Claims
Administrator will receive and pay, in accordance with the following schedule, fees, and commissions as reasonable
compensation for services conducted in the ordinary course of business.

For: Claims Administration Rates Paid To:

HRA Administration Greater of the following: Claims Administrator
$11.00/EE/MO or $75.00 per month

High Dollar Rx Validation Program 10% of Audited Claim Savings Claims Administrator
Annual Renewal Fee $250.00 Claims Administrator
Subrogation Recovery Fee 30% of Recovery Subrogation Vendor

Over Payment Recovery Fee 30% of Recovery Claims Administrator

I certify that the above represents a true and accurate disclosure of the distribution of fees for the Plan
Year beginning July 1, 2025.

City of Auburn / Board of Public Works Point C
Signature Signature
Matt Wullenwaber
Printed Name Printed Name
President
Title Title

March 28, 2025
Date Date

Page 10 of 10 29



POINT C Agenda #16
5310 N. 99 Street, Suite 1, Omaha NE 68134
402-571-6224

COBRA ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT
This agreement (“agreement”) for COBRA administrative services is made and entered into effective July 1, 2025 by

and between City of Auburn / Board of Public Works (the “Client”) and Point C.

SECTION A: SERVICES

1. Client (on behalf of the named plan administrator(s)) (“Plan Administrator(s)”) of the group health Plan(s) as
defined below hereby retains Point C to provide, and Point C hereby agrees to provide, the nondiscretionary,
ministerial recordkeeping and notification services set forth in Exhibit B and as described in detail in the Point
C COBRA Employer Guidelines (the “services™).

2. Client has received a copy of Point C COBRA Employer Guidelines (the “Guidelines), which it shall review
and approve in writing. Point C shall not be required to provide the services until such approval has been
delivered by Client. Client understands that the Guidelines may be amended from time to time by Point C and
such amendments will be provided to Client by Point C. Client will be deemed to have accepted and approved
the Guidelines and each amendment thereto if Client does not promptly notify Point C in writing that it objects
to any provision in the Guidelines or any amendment thereto.

3. Client understands that as a condition to Point C providing the services, Client and the Plan Administrator(s) of
the group health Plan(s) must timely and accurately perform all their responsibilities and provide the
information required of them as set forth in the Guidelines and any amendments thereto. Point C reserves the
right to request additional information from Client and/or the Plan Administrator(s) of the group health Plan(s)
at any time. Point C shall be entitled to rely on any information provided by the Client and/or the Plan
Administrator(s) of the group health Plan(s) as accurate, valid, and complete.

4. Client acknowledges that the performance of services by Point C does not and is not intended to make Point C
the “Plan Administrator”, “Plan Sponsor”, or other “Fiduciary” under The Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974, as amended or otherwise of any group health Plan(s) and Client will not identify or refer
to Point C or any of its affiliates as such. Point C has no discretionary authority or discretionary responsibility
in the administration of the group health Plan(s). The parties further acknowledge and agree that Point C will
not be deemed to be providing legal or tax advice to Client as a result of the ministerial duties undertaken by
Point C pursuant to this agreement.

5. Client shall not use Point C or its affiliates’ names or marks without Point C’s prior written consent.

SECTION B: FEES, TAXES, PAYMENTS

1. In consideration of the services to be provided pursuant to the agreement, the Client shall pay Point C the fees
set forth in the fee schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A, which shall not be subject to change during the first
twelve months that this agreement is in effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Point C may immediately adjust
the fees in the event that Client specifies a change in the rate status structure which requires alteration of Point
C premium billing mechanism, has a significant increase or decrease in the number of Plan participants,
requests additional services or requests eligibility reports not normally provided by Point C.

2. The premium due under COBRA shall be up to the maximum permitted by law. Client agrees that Point C will

retain the 2% administrative fee allowed by COBRA as additional compensation for services rendered
hereunder.

Page 1 of 7 30



Agenda #16
3. Point C will bill the Client on the first day of each month (the “Billing Date™) for the current month as set forth

in Exhibit A, and any other fees agreed to by the parties, based on the number of employees enrolled in the
Client’s group health Plan(s) as of the Billing Date. The monthly fee, if not paid by the 30™ day following the
billing date, shall be subject to interest on the amount of all past due fees at a rate of ten percent per annum, or
if lower, the maximum allowable rate under Nebraska state law.

4. There shall be added to all payments due hereunder amounts equal to any applicable taxes levied or based on
this agreement, exclusive of taxes based on Point C net income.

SECTION C: INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY LIMITATIONS

1. In the event of an error in Point C records or any reports or statements prepared by Point C and caused by Point
C, Point C shall correct such records, reports or statements, provided that Client advises Point C of such error
within 30 days of the receipt of such record, report or statement.

2. Point C is not required, under the terms of this agreement, to review any action of Client or any Plan
Administrator(s) of the group health Plan(s). Furthermore, Point C will not incur any liability by taking,
permitting, or omitting any actions on the basis of any action of Client or a Plan Administrator or for carrying
out the directions of Client or a Plan Administrator. Point C shall not have any obligation or liability with
respect to any services before the effective date of this agreement, including notices and the collection and
remission of premiums.

3. Point C shall not have any obligation to verify or determine the accuracy, validity or completeness of
information provided by Client or a Plan Administrator of a group health Plan(s) and shall not be responsible
for errors, delays or additional costs resulting from the receipt of inaccurate, invalid, incomplete or untimely
information or information provided in an unacceptable format or media. Client and/or a Plan Administrator
agree to provide any and all information to Point C on a timely basis.

4. Client agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Point C, its affiliates and their directors, officers,
employees, legal representatives, agents, successors, and assigns from and against all claims, losses, liabilities,
damages, demands, lawsuits, causes of action, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and
costs) (collectively “losses™) as a result of entering into and performing services under this agreement or any
other cause arising out of this agreement or the group health Plan(s), except to the extent those losses resulted
from the gross negligence, willful misconduct or willful breach of this agreement by Point C in the performance
of the services.

5. Point C agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Plan Administrator(s) of the group health Plan(s),

Client, and its officers, directors, shareholders, employees and agents (collectively the “Client Group™) from

and against all losses asserted against or imposed on any member of the Client Group to the extent those losses

resulted from the gross negligence, willful misconduct or willful breach of this agreement by Point C in the

performance of the services; provided, that:

a) Point C is promptly notified in writing of such suit or cause of action;

b) Point C controls any negotiations or defense and Client assists Point C as reasonably required by Point C; and

c) Client takes all reasonable steps to mitigate any potential damages that may result. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Point C shall have no obligation under this Section C5 to the extent Point C is entitled to
indemnification from Client pursuant to Section C4 or Point C is otherwise not liable under this Section C.

6. Inno event will Point C be responsible for special, indirect, incidental, consequential or other similar damages
in connection with the services, even if it has been advised of the possibility of such damages.

7. Point C shall not be liable for any delay or failure to perform under this agreement resulting, directly or
indirectly, from strike, fire, war, insurrection, riot, power failure or a circumstance beyond Point C’s reasonable
control. In case of errors or lost data caused by power failure, mechanical difficulties with information storage
and retrieval systems, or other events not attributable to its own gross negligence or willful misconduct, Point
C’s sole obligation will be to use its reasonable efforts to reconstruct any records maintained by Point C and to
amend any reports prepared by it which may have been affected by such event, at its own expense.

Page 2 of 7 31



8.

Agenda #16
The parties acknowledge that the fees for the services to be provided hereunder reflect the allocation of risk set

forth in this Section C. This Section C sets forth the full extent of Point C liability hereunder for any claim
against Point C and sets forth Client’s sole remedies.

SECTION D: TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT

1.

2.

Either party may terminate this agreement on 90 days prior written notice (or such earlier date as mutually
agreed upon between the parties).

Notwithstanding anything contained herein, this agreement shall, at the option of Point C, terminate or

otherwise be suspended, effective 30 days after providing written notice to the Client, if:

a) The Client defaults in the performance of its obligations hereunder (including failure to follow the
Guidelines and failure to meet its payment obligations);

b) The Client commits an act of bankruptcy or becomes the subject of any Bankruptcy Act proceeding or
becomes insolvent, or if any substantial part of its property becomes subject to any levy/seizure,
assignment, application or sale for or by any creditor or governmental agency; or has any material adverse
change in its financial condition

The Client will have until the end of the 30 days to establish a remedy agreeable to both parties.

This agreement shall automatically be terminated in the event:

a) Client objects to the Guidelines or any amendment thereto;

b) Client fails to pay any payments due including dues or group premium hereunder within 30 days;

c) Client offers a group health Plan(s) that does not comply with the applicable COBRA laws; or

d) Client ceases to offer the group health Plan(s), except as hereinafter provided, the termination of this
agreement shall not affect obligations arising prior to the termination of this agreement or Client’s
responsibility for fees for services provided prior to termination.

Upon termination of this agreement, Point C shall have no further duties or responsibilities with respect to
COBRA requirements related to the group health Plan(s), except Point C shall provide for a reasonable transfer
of records from Point C to Client or its designee upon payment of such fees, if any, as shall be charged by Point
C and the payment of all outstanding obligations due under this agreement.

SECTION E: CONFIDENTIALITY

1.

All confidential information disclosed hereunder will remain the exclusive and confidential property of the
disclosing party. The receiving party will not disclose the confidential information of the disclosing party and
will use at least the same degree of care in protecting the confidential information of the disclosing party as it
uses with respect to its own confidential information. The receiving party will limit access to confidential
information to its employees and advisors with a need to know and will instruct such employees and advisors to
keep such information confidential. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the receiving party may disclose
confidential information to the extent necessary to comply with any law, ruling, regulation or rule applicable to
it or to the extent necessary to enforce its rights under this agreement. In addition, Point C may also disclose
Client confidential information:

a) to the extent that disclosure of such information is required to perform the services;

b) in connection with an audit or regulatory examination by a governmental authority; and

c) to Plan Administrator(s) of the group health Plan(s).

Page 3 of 7 32



For purposes of this Section, “confidential information™ shall mean: all information of a confiderfialoers16

proprietary nature provided by the disclosing party to the receiving party for use in connection with the

services, but does not include:

a) information that is already known by the receiving party without an obligation of confidentiality;

b) information that becomes generally available to the public other than as a result of disclosure by the
receiving party in violation of this agreement; and

c) information that becomes known to the receiving party from a source other than the disclosing party on a
non-confidential basis. Confidential information of Point C also includes all trade secrets, processes,
proprietary data, information or documentation related thereto of Point C or its affiliates and any pricing or
product information furnished to Client by Point C or its affiliates.

SECTION F: COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

1.

Point C agrees to perform the services with respect to the group health Plan(s) in accordance with a reasonably
good faith interpretation of the applicable requirements of federal and state law. Except for such responsibilities
assumed by Point C pursuant to this agreement, Client shall be responsible for (i) compliance with all laws and
governmental regulations affecting Client’s business and (ii) any use it may make of the services to assist it in
complying with such laws and governmental regulations.

SECTION G: GENERAL

1.

This agreement shall not be assigned by Client without the prior written consent of Point C, and any attempt to
assign any rights, duties or obligations which arise under this agreement without such consent will be void.

Client has not been induced to enter into this agreement by any representation or warranty not set forth herein.
This agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to its subject matter and supersedes all
existing agreements and all other oral, written, or other communications between them concerning its subject
matter. This agreement shall not be modified except by a writing signed by the parties.

Client acknowledges, confirms, and agrees that other than Point C obligations to Client hereunder, Point C has
no obligation to any third party (including any current or former qualified beneficiaries under Client’s group
health Plan(s) or any agent or other person associated with Client).

Any notice under this agreement shall be given in writing and hand delivered or mailed to the relevant party.
Notices and payments sent by mail shall be deemed to have been mailed on the date of the postmark thereof.
Notices shall be deemed received on the date of delivery if delivered in person and five business days after
mailing if mailed. Any notice provided through an electronic medium shall be recognized to the extent
provided in applicable law to the extent such notice is properly and timely transmitted.

This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Nebraska, without regard to conflict of laws
provisions.

Page 4 of 7 33



COBRA ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AGREEMENT FEE SCHEDULEAgenda #16

EFFECTIVE: July 1, 2025

EXHIBIT A

In consideration of the services to be provided pursuant to the agreement, the Client shall pay Point C the fees set
forth in the fee schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A, which shall not be subject to change during the first twelve
months that this agreement is in effect.

The administrative services agreement entered into by City of Auburn / Board of Public Works and Point C lists
below the fees as required by The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) to be effective
July 1, 2025.

For:
COBRA administration Greater of the following:
$1.50/EE/MO or $75.00 per month
Annual Renewal Fee $50.00
EXHIBIT B

Point C will provide the following COBRA nondiscretionary, ministerial recordkeeping and notification services on
behalf of the employer:

* Generate and send initial COBRA notification to newly enrolled employees, spouses and dependents upon
notification by employer when they first become eligible for the group health Plan(s).

* Generate and send COBRA notice and election form to Qualified Beneficiaries (QB’s) upon notification by the
employer following a COBRA Qualifying Event.

« Communicate COBRA elections made by QB’s to the employer.

*  Collect QB COBRA premiums and remit appropriate balance to employer.

* Generate and send employer a monthly bill for COBRA services.

Point C has no responsibility for these services prior to the commencement of services to your organization.

City of Auburn / Board of Public Works Point C

Signature Siénature
Matt Wullenwaber
Printed Name Printed Name
President
Title Title

March 28, 2025
Date Date

Page 5 of 7 34



POINT C - COBRA SERVICES Agenda #16
EMPLOYER GUIDELINES

COBRA Continuation requires employers to offer Qualified Beneficiaries (“QB’s”) covered under the group health
Plan(s) to continue coverage should that coverage be lost due to specific incidents called Qualifying Events
(“QE’s”). Through Point C COBRA services, employers no longer have to commit valuable company resources in
maintaining COBRA paperwork and procedures. Following the simple “Employer Responsibilities” detailed below
will result in the timely and accurate processing of your COBRA duties and will enable you to focus on your core
business.

EMPLOYER RESPONSIBILITIES:

Point C COBRA services require that you perform the following simple steps:

* Review, sign and return the service agreement to Point C.

* Review Employer Guidelines and sign and return the Employer Agreement to Point C

* Notify Point C within 90 days when individuals first become enrolled in a COBRA eligible program.

*  Notify Point C within 30 days when COBRA eligible program participants experience a COBRA Qualifying
Event (see definition).
Credit for Point C administrative fees will not be retroactive beyond two months for late notifications.

¢ Make available to COBRA QB’s the same COBRA eligible programs offered to current employees.
A Qualified Beneficiary receiving continuation coverage (COBRA) must receive the same benefits, choices,
and services that a similarly situated employee/participant is currently receiving under the group health Plan(s),
such as, the right during an open enrollment season to choose among available coverage options.
Notify the applicable COBRA eligible group health Plan(s) of COBRA elections and terminations.

e Understand the COBRA eligible group health Plan(s) interpretation of Nebraska LB551 and notify Point C
when COBRA regulations apply.

DEFINITIONS:

COBRA - Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act

COBRA applies to an employer’s group health Plan(s). The term “group health Plan(s)” is sometimes
misunderstood as only a medical plan. For COBRA purposes, the term “group health Plan(s)” includes medical,
dental, vision, prescription, medical reimbursement (HRA and FSA), certain Employee Assistance Programs, and
certain Wellness Programs.

Qualified Beneficiary (QB) — the employee and/or dependent(s) who are covered under an employer group health
Plan(s) on the day before a qualifying event. Also called “COBRA Continuant.”

Qualifying Events (QE) — Employers must offer Qualified Beneficiaries the opportunity to purchase COBRA

coverage if the Qualified Beneficiary experiences any of the following Qualifying Events which causes them to

lose coverage:

* Termination of a covered employee’s employment for any reason (other than in certain circumstances for gross
misconduct), including voluntary termination (COBRA period is 18 months).

* Reduction of hours of a covered employee including work stoppage and non-FMLA leave of absence (COBRA
period is 18 months).

* An employer declaring bankruptcy is a qualifying event to any employees, spouses and dependent children who
previously retired from the employer at the time of bankruptcy (special rules apply governing the term).

*  Death of covered employee (QB can continue COBRA for up to 36 months).

» Divorce or legal separation of employee and spouse (QB can continue COBRA for up to 36 months).

* A dependent child ceasing to be a dependent child under the provisions of the group health Plan(s) (QB can
continue COBRA for up to 36 months).

In addition, if a second qualifying event occurs during the 18-month period, the dependent may be eligible for a
total of 36 months of COBRA coverage measured from the date of the first qualifying event.

Page 6 of 7 35



Agenda #16

POINT C - COBRA SERVICES

EMPLOYER AGREEMENT

Client has received and reviewed Point C COBRA Employer Guidelines and accepts and approves the Guidelines
and each amendment thereto. Failure to sign this form following the receipt and execution of the service agreement
will not in any way affect the applicability of the guidelines.

Point C shall not be required to provide the services until approval has been delivered by Client. Client understands
that the Guidelines may be amended from time to time by Point C and such amendments will be provided to Client
by Point C.

Client: City of Auburn / Board of Public Works

Client Signature:

Client Printed Name:

Client Approval Date:

Page 7 of 7 36



A

zeveLL 9v9°LL 120 GSv°8lL L€TY9 (Li6'62) SZ6'S¢El 20’6l 08L°1L S09°1LS1 ¥9LL9Y 999°G¢l €65 LLLTL awoau] 3aN pajsnipy
86/'9G 86/'9G 8G/'9G 86.'9G 85.°95 86196 8¥G 0ve 86.°9G 86.°9G 86299 86,99 86,99 960°189 Juswhed pgd ssal
06L0LL yov'vL 62885 €126 686021 (es1'c2) sl¥‘oLy 09L9LL 8¢5°8zl £9£°802 TT6LLS ¥Zr‘z6l 68¥°258°L 3IWOONI L3N
(8e6°8€L) (Lezeyo) (289°659) (L25v29) (1ge9.8) (e2e°228)  (osL‘s90v) | (L19'6Ls) | (008‘ves) | (852°2Ps) (¥80°L29) (0zo‘ec9) | (viz'cLo’s) S3ISN3dX3 Tv.iOL
(689°9) (005°2) (0z8'9) (1eL'9) (096'9) (e86°2) (+89'2) (565°9) (e9z'2) (29'62) (656'S) (960'9) (62£5°'%01) dx3 buesadQ uoN [ejoL
(s0€'18) (s0e'18) (g0€°18) (528'18) (¥50°'19) (¥1¥'98) (8sz'zLY) (zee's8) (015'62) (626'18) (002'92) (852'92) (9¥e’eep) dx3 uoperoausdag [ejoL
(810°'¥S1) (z¥0'051) (z22'sv1) (z99'0t1) (160°'821) (8¥5'6¥1) (ee9'2098) | (z8L'9e1) | (96€'cLl) | (12G°2S1) (eL1'evl) (zv'621) | (2L2's6L'L) dx3 uag g ulwpy [ejo
(526°'96¥) (ege'c0¥) (062'22¥) (e0g's6E) (Z¥z'08¢€) (8er'¥8S) | (/6'c89'2) | (Le6'06%) | (1e9'see) | (¥EL'8L2) (zgz'g6e) (¥69'92¥) | (810°081°G) dx3 Bunesado |ejoL
821606 §€9°91L LLSLL 781669 1269 0zz'v08 €29°LYS'y  TLL'G68 8ce‘eeL 129°052 900°6€L°L rhrLes ¥02°G98°6 INNIATY TV1O0L
€98 80822 9£2'85 9z.'6¢ 858yl 80+'09 66¥'v€T Gri'es 96G°L1 8£6'0F 808°L2 29v' %S 04Z°88% A9y BuneladQ uoN [ej0L
¥01'0L (z6t'€) ¥62'82 61262 ¥09'82 £66°9€ z81°061 280°6E €22 89.°0¥ Goz'e8y v28°LE 8£9°c68 anusAay Jaul0 [e30L
195008 81€'269 186'229 6£€'0€9 618'€59 658902 Zr6'9LL'y | G¥Z'L08 285°289 716299 2£6°229 801 °G¥L 965°625°8 Aoy Bunesado [ejoL
gzoz uer | €20z ded €202 JelN €20z 1dy €20z ke €20z unr alA €20z Inr | €20z Bny | €202390 | €202 AON | €202 2@ aLA €202
0€L'e9L 0€0°Lt2 9vz‘ze (852's9) 891801 (1¥s‘6€) G18'S¥ [} [} [} [} [} GL8'GhY awoauj 3aN pajsnipy
92905 £91°1G £99°G¢ £99'GE €99'GE 85.'9G 9€6'692 0 0 0 0 0 9€5'692 I'8d MM 3 M SS9
95Ev1T £61°862 606°L9 (s60°0¢€) Leg‘erl L1Z°L R 0 0 0 0 0 LY LLL 3IWOONI L3N
(zoo‘ss2) (905°s22) (2vs‘029) (¥90°922) (sezses) (r1¥'608) | (89.'122'%) 0 0 0 0 0 (892°122'%) S3ISN3dX3 Tv.iOL
(zo8'q) (188°g) (g20'8) (922'01) (+92'8) (809'8) (258'9) 0 0 0 0 0 (£68'9) dx3 buesadQ uoN [ejoL
(992'28) (£96'98) (198'26) (¥59'28) (z£9'68) (££2'89) (959'718) 0 0 0 0 0 (959'715) dx3 uoperoausdag |ejoL
(z98'sv1) (1se'151) (G¥1L'2€1) (£66°291) (geL'Lel) (2¥9'Lp1) (969'9.8) 0 0 0 0 0 (969°'9.8) dx3 uag g ulwpy [ejo
(z28'518) (2og'18%) (916'22¥) (£21'59%) (195'60¢) (Ley'v8S) | (6S5'€8L°2) 0 0 0 0 0 (6S5°€82'2) dx3 Bunesado |ejoL
85€696 669°€20°L 95t'8eL 696569 990°6.9 1£9‘928 6L1'€€6'Y 0 0 0 0 0 6L1'¢€6'Y INNIATY TV1O0L
290°6Y 8LL'91 ¥¥9°25 0619 020'22 109'€S ¥62' LT 0 0 0 0 0 ¥62' LT A9y BuneladQ uoN [ejoL
169'68 621812 0vL'ze v.8'/2 6SE°LE 08Z'L¢ ¥E0°LEY 0 0 0 0 0 ¥E0°LEY anusAdy Jaul0 [eI0L
Gb9'vES 26.'88L 2L0'€59 906'129 189029 05.°G€L 258'vSZ'Y 0 0 0 0 0 258°vSZ Y Aoy Bunesado |ejoL
¥zoz uer | 2oz ded ¥20Z Jel ¥zoz 1dy ¥z0z Aem ¥zoz une alA ¥20ZINr | 20z BNy | $202390 | #20ZAON | 20z 22Q alA ¥z0z

SjuaLWvle)S [eIdUBULY PAaUIqWOD

Zzit epusby



8¢

19872, | 2/E7LG YSY'6Y €v6 67 GEE'96 ¥S8°1S 268°08% 19L°6€L €2€°901 161°66 892°2L1 120211 125°€L) €66°€82°1 JINOONI L3N
(862°¥7¥S) |(0€S‘vv) (Lzezoy) ((81L2'svy) |(v2g'see) |(s68°1es) |(seL‘098°7) (08z'8es)  (921°26S) |(298°608)  (262°26€)  |(9v6‘9sy)  (98L°09Y) | (L16°90.°S) S3SNIdX3 1V.LOL
0 (¥61) (tey) (z2) (02) 0 (L1¥) (ege) (sz0'1) (96€) (#¥5'€2) (281) (+62) (581'92) dx3 BunesadQ uoN [ej0L
(698°LE)  (698°LE) (698°1€) (698°1€) (881'zl)  (816'GE) (ev9'szL)  (968'Ge) (#20'9¢) (r20'9e)  (bEL'9E) (z¥1'9¢) (£61°9¢) (£61°26€) dx3 uoneroaudaq [ejoL
(z¥5'901) (626°€0L) (895'56) (e85'v6) (98g°28)  (e9e'v0L)  (095'z6S)  (965'00L)  [(8LL'%6) (1eg'oel) (gez'sol)  [(z69'c0l) [ (BSL°L6) (¥sv'612°1) dx3 uag g uILIPY [EjoL
(28¢'90v)  (8£5°82E) (ege'ore)  (vve'6Le)  |(0c0'962) (pSS'L6E)  (9L1'280°C) [(Sev'Lov)  (662'G0¥) | (995°8€€)  (#¥8°z6L)  |(SG6°9LE)  [(9e6°Lee) [ (LGL'690'Y) dx3 BunesadQ ejoL
§99°LLL | 206°LZS SLE11S L99‘séy | 602°26¥ | 6VL°98S 185°1€e‘e  L¥0°8L9 66Y°€¥9 850'509  §20°0€S 110699 €12e€9 0+6°066‘9 3INNIATY TV10L
0Z¥'0€ €elL'gl 218'sy 280°2¢ ¥06'01 98y LEL's8L vSv'8y 168°L 00Z'L¥y 282'.¢€ 629'€2 GG6'EY €06'€6€ Aoy BunesadQ UON [ej0 L
8L¥'65 (£85°¢1) 8£2'02 198'L1 826'61 826'2 618921 108'52 0£9'9Z ¥9€'9Z 61,92 L0L 101 g€z ¥00°2G€ anuaAdy Jayl0 830
128229 | 9G€'L1S Gze' LGy 2uL'svy | LL€°19Y | ¥E0'9LS 1£9'6L0°C | 261'€09 210609 ver'Les | v96°G9y 182" 1+2°99G €er'ore'e Aoy Bunesado |ejoL
vzoz uer | ¥z0zded | vZoz e | vzoz4dvy | vzoz Aew | pzoz unt | +202/0¢/9 | ¥20ZInr | 20z Bny | ¥Zozides | $20Z300 | +20ZAON | +20Z 22a | ¥20Z/LEiTL ¥20z
alA alA
LE0°L6L 120°201 L8Y'EL (L6%'71) 088'62) 25€'89 182625 0 0 0 0 0 0 182'625 3IWOONI L3N
(so8‘sys) |(sLLLES) (oeL<26v)  (LL9'ces) |(v9e‘ive) |(e0°2vs)  |(¥0L°286C) | O 0 0 0 0 0 (¥02°256°2) S3ISN3dX3 Tv.iOL
0 (62) (6S1) (e18) (150°1) 0 0 0 0 (150°1) dx3 buesadQ uoN [ejoL
(669'9¢)  (669'9€) (666'9€) (1ov'9e) (L9¥' 7€) (z2L'92) (1¥0°'802) 0 0 0 0 (1%0°'802) dx3 uoperoaudag |ejoL
(80z'26)  (209'.6) (zee'sL) (921'211)  (8€6'G8) (11E'¥6) (15°0L8) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (#15°0£8) dx3 uag g ulwpy [ejo
(268°'LLY)  |(B2L'96E) (9g9'Lve)  (vzo'08e) |(S99°'22z2) (Lzz'ozy)  |(860°8LL°2) O 0 0 0 0 0 (860°'8L1°2) dx3 Bunesado |ejoL
§€8'9¢L | 9£1°8€9 £29°0£S 0zL'68¥ | v¥8LLY | 92Th 0L 686°28¥‘c | 0 0 0 0 0 0 686°28h°‘c INNIAIY TV1O0L
028'G€ 069°L1 gLy 688°9¢ €L9'02 LPETy /8168 0 0 0 0 0 0 /8168 Aoy BugeladQ uoN [ejoL
266'vS 6LL'%C LYy 90¢'sl 920°t1g 099'92 £eL0LL 0 0 0 0 0 0 £eL0LL anusAdy Jayi0 [eI0L
€10'9v9 | 899°109 06¥'¥9F ¥Z6'SEy | GYL'9S¥ | ST¥L¥S gog'ezl'e |0 0 0 0 0 0 G99'czl’e Aoy Bunesado |ejoL
Gcoz uer | gzozded | gzozJem | szoz4dv | gzoz Aew | gzozunr | Gz02/0£/9 | S20ZINr | S20z ny | gzozides | 6202300 | S20ZAON | §20Z 2°a | §20Z/LEiTh 5202
alA alA

juswiedaq 214399]3

Zzit epusby




6€

(L68°LE) (588°01) (160°€2) (669'%) (158'9) (zv8'6Ll) [(L9Z'L61) v0lL'e 88¥'¢C 88Z'vL (609°01) (S¥v'SL) (s62'52) (2£2'802) awoau| 33N pajsnipy

805°02 805°02 805°02 805°02 805°02 805°02 8¥0'cZ) 805'02 805'02 805'02 805°02 80502 805'0¢2 960'9%2 DA3N 40} [enJody |gd SS9
(68€°LL) €296 (e85°2) 608'SL 159°cl (ree'ss)  |(6L2'vL) zi9'ee 966°ZY 961V 6686 €90°S (28L'%) 6s€°Le 3JINOONI L3N
(z2z°z01) (r18°28) (€L9'76) (e20'88)  [(912'c6)  |(6L0°90Z) |(80§°CL9) (erv'ee)  (z62'88)  |(€26°c8) (SL2'66) (¥69°Z6) (€59'66) (voL‘0g2’L) S3SN3dX3 TV.LOL
(1¥€'9) (856'9) () () (1¥5'9) (5€9°2) (L51'0%) (¥58°S) (068°S) (e59'G) (168°S) (e59'G) (e59's) (zsL'v1) dx3 BunesadQ UoN [ejo L
(€90'92) (€90'92) (€90'92) (€90'92) (€90'92) (e90'92)  (8L€'951) (e90'92) |(e90'€e) (21v's) (sev'oe) (82v'92) (Lev'oe) (Loz'062) dx3 uonerosudaq [ejoL
(og0'zg) (980'82) (LeL'ge) (Lgg'9e) (z6€'v2) (9z'92)  (e€0'99l) (ewv'le)  [(8L0'ST) (yoL'L€) (e66'52) (ove've) (vov'ee) (Le0'vee) dx3 [eJaus9 g UlWpPY [ejoL
(8e8'Lg) (£0L'92) (8L1'¢€) (zvl'62) (0zL'9¢) (9s0'9rL)  (1¥6'60€) (eso'or) |(S9L'vE) (¥51's¢) (90%'L¥) (L9z'9¢) (501 'vp) (02L'1¥8) dx3 BunelsdQ [ejoL
£88°06 LEV'LE 0£0°26 288°c0L €2€°20L §89°90L | 682°86S 9Z0°ZLL | €6LLEL | BLLBLL 719601 85.°L6 99876 €90'892°} 3ANNIATY TVLOL
18v'C 182'¢ L16T oze'c ¥69'C 08z‘c S¥0°LL z5eT 289°c 780'¢ zeL'e 11G'¢ 18T 859'GE Aoy BuijesadQ uoN [ejo
08v's €00°L 0967 6L1'6 088's 6589 19g'zy 8209 S01°L LI¥'9 006'% 67y 965°S G889/ anuaAay JayiQ [ejoL
916'6L Ly)'L8 £60'78 28€'C6 66.'86 9r5'96 £88'8€S 9r9'80L | 90012} 812'601 28510l 20.'68 €87'98 025'SSH'L Asy BuipesadQ [ejo L

¥z0z uer ¥20zZ 924 vzoziew | vzozidv | pzoz Aewn | pzOZ Unr | pZ02Z/0€/9 | vZo0ZINr | ¥ZoZ Bny | pzozides | $20Z 120 ¥ZOZAON | $20Z92d | teOZ/LECL vzoz
ala ala

(080°9¢) (v8v'22) (LoL'Ly) (5pS°LL) (062°L1) (soz'sel) | (v8z'eLe) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (r8z'eL2) awodu] JaN paisnlpy
126'6) 805°02 zor'sl z0r'slk zov'sl zov'8l 180'vL1 180'7L) D3N 10} [ENIODY 3 SSB|
(60L°91) (926°1) (662°c2) 158 [N (e98'6LL) |(261°65L) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (261°6S1) 3JINOONI L3N
(seL12L) (€68°201) (sz6'v2l) (Loz‘roL)  [(zes‘io0L)  |(86v'0€Z) |(v28°282) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (veg‘282) S3SN3dX3 TV.LOL
(e59's) (e59's) (5¥8'2) (ssz'ol) (evz'8) (r2L'2) (ezv'sy) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (ezv'sy) dx3 BunessdQ UON [ejoL
(z98'92) (€90'92) (£59'9¢) (886'92) (900°22) (zog'ze)  (8Le'99l) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (82€'991) dx3 uonerosudaq [ejoL
(s9z'ze) (zrz'ee) (Log'sg) (0L€'92) (£89'v2) (ovs'ze)  (sie'edl) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (sLe'e61) dx3 suag @ UILPY [ejoL
(510°29) (S96°2¥) (zgl'Ly) (885°L€) (925°L¥) (zge'z9l) | (8¥9'zse) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (8¥9'z8¢g) dx3 BunelsdQ [ejoL

992°50L 116°50L 929101 850°20L ¥29°20L 9€9°0LL | 229829 0 0 0 0 0 0 129'829 3ANNIATY TVLOL

€60'¢ 889y S60°c 67l‘c 6LL'S aLl'e 026'2C 0 0 0 0 0 0 0z6'zZe Aoy BuesadQ UoN [ejo

956°L 812'6 LO¥'S 1GL'S LLL'9 L90°L 915'LY 0 0 0 0 0 0 9LG ¥ anuaAay JayYi0 [ejoL

LLL'v6 11026 vZl'e6 85.'c6 82106 £61'00) 16195 0 0 0 0 0 0 161 '¥95 Asy BuipesadQ [ejo L

§20z uer §20z 9od §eozJen | szoz4ady | gzoz Aew | szozunr | §202/0€/9 | SeozINnr | §zZOZ Bny | gzozides | §z0Z 120 SZOZAON | GZ0Z 93 | S20Z/LEMTL s20z
atA atA
juswyedaq 193

Z¢# epusby



oy

(629'22)  (¥v've)  [(sve'vz)  ((sveze)  [(vee'se)  ((co00'§h)  [(zes8'evl)  [(9s5'€z)  [(922°09)  [(25t'vL) (9g1L°01) 0v8'v9¢ (2€9°21) 10£°66 awoduj 38N pajsnipy
052'9¢ 062'9¢ 052'9¢ 062'9¢ 052'9¢ 052'9¢ 005°212 052'9¢ 052'9¢ 052'9¢ 052'9¢ 052'9¢ 052'9¢ 000°GEY [ENIOOY JUBWARBL |'9d S
129'8 £08°LL $00°ZL 5006 926'0L 'L 809°cL ¥69°'2k  (920'2) 86.°12 ¥60°92 060°L0¥ €19'€Z L0SvES 3ODNI L3N
(868°02)  (951Lv9)  (9sc'bs)  [(01669)  (9¥2's9)  (896°29)  (SLv'60¥)  (952°99)  (966°00L) |(689°99) (£22'¢9) (61€°08) (y16°28) (588°518) S3SN3dX3 V1oL
(8¥€) (8¥7€) (8¥€) (89€) (6¥€) (8¥€) (011'2) (8¥€) (8¥7€) (8¥€) (681) (6¥1) (671) (z¥9'e) dx3 BuesadQ UoON [ejoL
(eLe'e2)  (eLe'ez)  |(eLe'ee)  (eve'ee)  |(c08'zz)  (eLe'ee)  (gez'ovl)  ((ele'ee)  ((eL€£02) (eL€'61) (eL€'61) (ogt'v1) (4] (095°152) dx3 uoneroaidaq [ejoL
(ov¥'sl)  (zzo'sl)  |(es6'02)  (zss'e6l)  (ebb'o)  (0ze'8L)  (L¥0'60L)  ((8LL'%L)  |(BES2S) (50L'¥2) (ov€'12) (seL'sh) (6¥2'71) (982°162) dx3 [essuag g ulWpY [ejoL
(eL're)  (gse'ze)  |(2sS'92)  (Lv0'9e)  |(186'Gz)  (Lge'se)  (9z0'8SL)  ((L6L°22)  ((9gL'Le) (e9z'22) (sz8'c2) (506'02) (98¢'62) (£68'80€) dx3 BunesadQ [ejoL
02562 0¥6°s. L9z'cs §16°8L zLl'oL 512°68 £20°€8Y 0568 02692 18v‘88 12868 60¥°LS5¥ 1258 98L‘05¢°L 3INN3A3Y TV1O0L
986'G 88¢€') Lyv'6 ¥2e's 09Z°L Zre'e L1€2¢ 6£9'C X4 8/2'6 ¥26'9 209 0zL'L ¥01'6G A9y BunessdQ uoN [ejo )
€6 GGS') ¥00°L LLLL 020°L 1GE'S £€0°'L1 ¥SZ'L €L €827 60L'L 9/2'9.€ LvZ') 6£5°00% A9y JBYIO 18101
0£0'cL 166'2L 018'2L ev'eL z68'cL 2e5'vL 2L9'6EY 860°'GL 012'9L 926'9L 886'GL LEG' YL 09622 ¥¥6'068 A8y Bunesado [ejoL
¥20z uer | ¥zZ0z A4 | ¥€coz JeIN | 20z idv | 20z AeW | yzoz unr | $202/05/9 | ¥20ZInr | +20Z Bnv | vzozides | +20Z 100 ¥20Z AON ¥20299a | ¥z0zZ/LEiTL 20z
ala alA
dap Jys
8.9'8 9.¢'291 26¢ (soL'y) (229'%) ove'LL £09'VLL 0 0 0 0 0 0 ¥09°'v.L awoduj 19N pajsnipy
669'0¢€ G59'0€ 192'LL 192°L) 1921 19Z°'LL ¥SE'0El ¥SE'0El [ENIOOY JUBWARBL |'9d S
gee'ee 1£0°c6L | €59°'LL 951°cL ¥85°CL 10262 156v0¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0 896v0¢ 3ODNI L3N
(2v8‘'s9)  (sev's9)  (0ez'29)  (8e2'69)  |(¥5049)  (1L8S'¥S)  (916°98€) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (9v6°98¢) S3SN3dX3 Tv10oL
(671) (6¥1) (12) (12) (12) (12) (e8€) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (e8€) dx3 BuesadQ UON [ejoL
(oz've)  (soz'vz)  |(Soz've)  (soz've)  (soz've)  (ere'el)  (gez'ovl) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (8ez'orl) dx3 uoneroaidaq [ejoL
(68c'9l)  (zes'oz)  |(zes'el)  (lov'el)  (ebb'Lz)  (06L'SL)  (08'Chl) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (808'zt1) dx3 uag g UIWpY [ejoL
(#01'62)  (609'02) |(18v'e)  (1G0'92)  (Gh2'8L)  (L8G'6L)  (LLS'€El) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (Z15'eel) dx3 BunesadQ [ejoL
6L1'50L | 92§85 | 28878 56828 6£9°9. z8L'c8 £06°169 0 0 0 0 0 0 ¥06°169 3INN3A3Y TV1O0L
860'9 00t 9z8'L 1519 896 [adX) 88162 0 0 0 0 0 0 88162 n9y BunessdQ uoN [ejo )
066'¥2 €28'281 | SG¥'L 19€°C 2686') 629'1 918'vlz 0 0 0 0 0 0 918'v1Z A9y JBYIO 8101
160'vL ¥0€'SL 109'GL 9.€'vL 81G'vL 600°'vL 006°L¥t 0 0 0 0 0 0 006°L¥t A8y Bunesado [ejoL
§Z0zuer | Gz-494 | Gzo0z4elN | Scozady | szoz Aeln | szozunr | 6Z0Z/0€/9 | SzZOZINr | szoz Bny | szozides | 202100 §20Z AON §20z99a | S20Z/LEiTL §202
alA aiAa

juswedoq J9)eMa)Se

Zzit epusby




44

16 (vee'y) (9v) 9s¥ [ 18 (vL'e) 8 wz'e (521L°¢) zol (zog) [ (re'e) awoduj 38N pajsnipy
0 0 0 0 JuswAed |edound ss9|

16 (r6E'D) (o) 95¥ 1L 18 (kpL'e) 18 ove'e (5L1°€) 2oL (z0€) 1L (zLL'e) JWODNI L3N
(696°'02) |(0S2°S2) (26812) (028°02) (915°12) (Lev'12) (zev'zel)  |(299°12) 69zl (Li8'vz)  ((esoke)  ((S2L'L2) (292°12) (8vz‘092) S3SN3dX3 TV.LOL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 dx3 BuesedQ UON [ejoL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 dx3 uoneiosida( [ejoL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 dx3 ue9 g ulwpY [ejoL
(696°'02)  (05.'S2) (£68°12) (0£8'02) (915°12) (Lev'Le) (zev'zel)  (299'12) 69l'zel (L8'vsL)  (8S0°L2) (szL'ie) (L92'12) (8¥2'092) dx3 BunelsdQ [ejoL
19012 95€°12 15812 [:Y43%4 18512 1512 15L'82L evL1e (eze'szl) SE9LLL 29112 £28°02 6€€'12 9£5°952 3ANNIATY TVLOL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Ay BuiesadQ UON (oL
[k 8€G'l 260°C 205} LLL) 518° 566°6 0002 (tvz'ol) LLEE) 18g'l 0Ll 0zs') Sev'6l anuaAay JayYiQ [ejoL
88.'6l 818'6l 65.'6) Ge8'6l oL8'sl 95.'6l 15.'8L1 6vL'6l (z89'811) ¥92'851 18.'6) civ'el 618'61 LoL'Le2 Asy BuiesadQ [ejo L
vzOz uer | vzoz9ad | vzZOZJeW | veoz4dy | pzoz Aen | pzozunr | p202/0€/9 | 2Oz INr | ¥Z0Z Bny | pZOZides | 202390 | 20T AON ¥20z 93a vzoz/LereL

ala ala vzoz
[44 SLL 89 €8¢ 114 19 €06 0 0 0 0 0 0 €06 awoou] JaN pajsnipy
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Juswhed |ediound ssa|
[44 SLL 89 €8¢ 552 19 €06 0 0 0 0 0 0 €06 3NOONI L3N
(sss°12)  |(voo‘Le) (262°12) (r1512) (s0212) (L2212) (Laz'gzl) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (Laz'gzl) S3SN3dX3 TV.LOL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 dx3 BunesadQ UON (oL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 dx3 uoneroeudaq [ejoL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 dx3 ue9 g ulwpY [ejoL
(sss°12)  |(v00'L2) (L62'12) (r15°12) (soL'te) (L2L'12) (Los'szl) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (Los'szl) dx3 BunelsdQ [ejoL
11512 6LL1T vzeie 16812 09612 8812 ¥99'62L 0 0 0 0 0 0 ¥99'621L 3INNIATY TVLOL
0 0 0 0 0 0 - 0 0 0 0 0 0 - A9y BunesadQ uoN [ejo
€5L°) 0LE'} L9V} 6%0°C ¥90°C G26°) 6950} 0 0 0 0 0 0 69501 anuaAay JayYiQ [ejoL
veg'sl 608°6} L58'6) 8v8'6l G68°6L £98'6} 96061} 0 0 0 0 0 0 960'61 1 Asy BuipesadQ [ejo L
gecozuer | gz0z9a4 | Sz0z4ielw | seozady | szozAew | szozunr | S202/0€/9 | SeoZ It | S2oz Bny | gzozides | §Z0Z190 | S20Z AON §20Z 92Q S20z/LERL s20z
ata atA

yawnedaq abeqlen

Z¢# epusby




Agenda #22

Board of Public Works Bank Reconciliation Report - by Bank Number Page: 1
Jul 08, 2025 5:08PM

Report Criteria:
Print Outstanding Checks and Deposits and Bank and Book adjustments

Auburn State Bank (Checking Acct) (1)
June 30, 2025

Account: 1010202

Bank Account Number: 191494
Bank Statement Balance: 4,939,680.43 Book Balance Previous Month: 4,863,932.43
Outstanding Deposits: 6,778.97 Total Receipts: 772,215.60
Outstanding Checks: 57,763.44 Total Disbursements: 747,452.07
Bank Adjustments: .00 Book Adjustments: .00
Bank Balance: 4,888,695.96 Book Balance: 4,888,695.96
Proof (Bank balance less book balance): .00
Outstanding Deposits Section
Deposit Deposit Deposit Deposit Deposit Deposit Deposit Deposit
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
1197 3,374.64 1205 856.51 1206 2,547.82
Grand Totals:
6,778.97
Deposits cleared: 61 items Deposits Outstanding: 3 items
Outstanding Checks Section
Check Check Check Check Check Check Check Check
Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount Number Amount
1209 325.70 48866 129.70 48984 82.95 49055 165.58
49141 40.25 49204 99.73 49207 228.22 49355 47.89
49509 1.25 49640 30.00 49732 262.68 49787 57.63
49980 250.00 50107 79.79 50109 157.55 50110 22.39
50114 30.53 50120 24.06 50155 1,861.12 50159 55.80
50163 132.44 50166 975.00 50169 171.76 50182 31,5638.50
50185 97.82 50186 150.00 63025106 18,667.07 63025107 1,702.80
63025109 375.23
Grand Totals:
57,763.44
Checks cleared: 113 items Checks Oustanding: 29 items
Bank Adjustments Section
Description Amount Description Amount
adj .00
Grand Totals: .00

Book Adjustments Section

42



Agenda #22

Board of Public Works Bank Reconciliation Report - by Bank Number Page: 1
Jul 03, 2025 11:59AM

Report Criteria:
Print Outstanding Checks and Deposits and Bank and Book adjustments

Auburn State Bank-DESIGNATED FUNDS (MMG) (2)
June 30, 2025

Account: 1010204

Bank Account Number: 457285

Bank Statement Balance: 1,093,833.29 Book Balance Previous Month: 1,093,339.94

Outstanding Deposits: .00 Total Receipts: 493.35

Outstanding Checks: .00 Total Disbursements: .00

Bank Adjustments: .00 Book Adjustments: .00

Bank Balance: 1,093,833.29 Book Balance: 1,093,833.29
Proof (Bank balance less book balance): .00

Outstanding Deposits Section

Deposits cleared: 1items Deposits Outstanding: 0 items

Checks cleared: 0 items Checks Oustanding: 0 items

Bank Adjustments Section

Book Adjustments Section

43



Agenda #22

CD-INVESTMENTS - June 2025

ISSUED/

RENEWED] MATURITY

GL DATE DATE NUM. TERM INT. RATE OWNER BANK ORIGINAL$JCURRENT$
ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT
1200 09/18/24 09/18/25 21003 12 MO CMPQ  4.60% Capitol Reserves ASB 489,675.41 532,461.54
1200 09/18/24 09/18/25 21004 12 MO CMPQ  4.60% Capitol Reserves ASB 545,764.92 564,364.08
1200 09/18/24 09/18/25 21005 12 MO CMPQ 4.60% Capitol Reserves ASB 924,613.73 956,123.70
1200 09/18/24 09/18/25 21006 12 MO CMPQ  4.60% Capitol Reserves ASB 688,056.24 711,504.55
1200 09/18/24 09/18/25 21007 12 MO CMPQ 4.60% Capitol Reserves ASB 545,764.92 564,364.08
1200 01/06/23 07/08/25 20693 12 MO CMPQ  5.11% Capitol Reserves ASB 731,965.61 803,480.41
1200 07/08/24 07/08/25 20688 12 MO CMPQ  5.11% Capitol Reserves ASB 618,210.48 641,669.29
1200 07/08/24 07/08/25 20689 12 MO CMPQ  5.11% Capitol Reserves ASB 618,210.72 641,669.55
1200 10/31/24 10/31/25 21148 12 MO CMPQ  4.30% Capitol Reserves ASB 671,599.51 685,755.70
1200 05/29/25 05/29/26 21425 12 MO CMPQ  4.00% Capitol Reserves ASB 588,972.64 588,972.64
1200 03/24/25 03/24/26 1106849 12 MO CMPQ  4.06% Capitol Reserves UBT 217,451.90 217,451.90
TOTAL ELECTRIC INVESTMENTS $6,907,817.44
IWATER DEPARTMENT
1200 09/18/24 09/18/25 21008 12 MO CMPQ  4.60% Capitol Reserves ASB 260,865.02 269,755.06
1200 7/8/2024 07/08/25 20691 12 MO CMPQ  4.65% Capitol Reserves ASB 222,528.62 241,737.68
1200 5/29/2025 05/29/26 21424 12 MO CMPQ  4.00% Capitol Reserves ASB 308,278.67 308,278.67
TOTAL WATER INVESTMENTS $819,771.41
ISEWER DEPARTMENT
1200 09/18/24 09/18/25 21009 12 MO CMPQ 4.60% Capitol Reserves ASB 563,974.22 583,193.93
1200 09/18/24 09/18/25 21010 12 MO CMPQ  4.60% Capitol Reserves ASB 84,324.87 91,692.89
1200 07/08/24 07/08/25 20690 12 MO CMPQ 5.11% Capitol Reserves ASB 446,587.62 463,533.97

TOTAL W.W. INVESTMENTS

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

$1,138,420.79

$8,866,009.64

a4




Agenda #22

INTEREST ALLOCATION
AUBURN STATE BANK RECONCILIATION - Through 06/30/2025
Prior Months c Increase/
balance -.% Decrease in Checks/ Ending Balance
#457285 S Deposits/ | Designated Transfers/ #457285
$1,093,339.94 <=t Transfers Funds Adjustments | $1,093,833.29
E.Prev.Bal. $834,160.95 76.3%
$376.40 $376.40
E. REV.% 76.3% $834,160.95( 100.0%|interest $376.40 $0.01 $834,537.34
rounding -$0.02 $0.00
$834,160.95| 100.0% 376.38
$0.00 $834,537.34
W Prev. Bal. $162,110.54| 14.83% $0.00
$73.16 $73.16
W. REV.% 14.83% $162,110.54 100.0%|interest $73.16 $162,183.70
rounding
$162,110.54( 100.00% 73.16
$0.00 $162,183.70
WW.Prev.Bal. $97,068.43 8.88%
$43.81 $43.81 rounding $0.00
WW. REV% (8.88% $97,068.43| 100.0% |interest $43.81 $97,112.23
$97,068.43| 100.00% 43.81
$0.00| 100.00% $97,112.23
492.9 493.35 $1,093,339.92 v $493.35(493.35 $1,093,833.27
** adjusted for rounding
INTEREST $376.38
INTEREST 73.16
INTEREST $43.81
Total Interest 493.35

2024 Interest

Dec 2,349.24
Nov 2,384.29
Oct 3,062.31
Sept 4,262.97
Aug 5,236.69
Jul 5,159.70
June 4,930.55
May 5,019.53
Apr 4,915.14
Mar 5,066.74
Feb 4,539.93
Jan 4,728.42

49,306.27 YTD Interest

2025 Interest

Dec

Nov

Oct

Sept

Aug

Jul

Jun 2,706.98
May 2,761.46
Apr 2,622.92
Mar 2,673.84
Feb 2,343.16
Jan 2,433.86

15,542.22 YTD Interest

45




Agenda #22

PLEDGING ANALYSIS

Auburn State Bank - June 2025 Pledge Analysis

RATING-

PLEDGE# ISSUE DATE ORIGINAL AMOUNT| MATURITY SECURITY PLEDGED SP/Moodys 6/30/2025
112128KN2 12/19/17] $ 130,000.00 12/15/29|BROKEN BOW NEB GO NR $ 120,169.40
187857GD3 11/27/23] $ 900,000.00 04/01/40|CLINTON-MACOMB MI PUB LIBR NR $ 742,599.00
915899RK6 03/17/21| $ 1,000,000.00 01/15/51|UPPER MERION PA AREA SCH DIST NR $ 866,420.00
31395WHNO 07/01/05| $ 1,330,000.00 07/15/25|FHLMC REMIC SERIES 3005 ED NR $ 1.17
3137FL2Q86 04/20/20( $ 2,000,000.00 01/25/26|FHLMC REMIC SERIES K-F58 NR $ 449,640.02
3137FL7L2 03/28/19| $ 1,300,000.00 02/25/26|FHLMC REMIC SERIES K-F60 NR $ 227,168.56
3137H5FZ5 04/25/23| $ 500,000.00 11/25/30|FHLMC REMIC Series K-J37 NR $ 462,736.15
3137FMCWO0 08/07/19| $ 2,000,000.00 05/25/29|FHMS KF63 A NR $ 1,016,392.66
3140LE6E2 09/20/22( $ 500,000.00 12/01/27 |FNMA MBS 2ND LIEN MULT NR $ 475,133.97
3140J2QH2 10/26/23[ $ 500,000.00 12/01/30|FNMA MBS BL9455 NR $ 428,943.43
3140LANP6 01/01/21] $ 500,000.00 01/01/31|FNMA MBS BLLN MULTI 7+ NR $ 407,989.94
3140LBB85 12/21/23] $ 500,000.00 02/01/36|[FNMA MBS BLLN MULTI 7+ NR $ 357,503.23
3136AYEX7 09/01/17| $ 500,000.00 09/25/35|FNMA REMIC TRUST 2017-83 NR $ 91,384.91
3136BLET3 09/18/23| $ 500,000.00 12/25/46 |FNR 2022-3EA NR $ 300,312.97
34682EML4 03/01/19( $ 330,000.00 09/01/36|[FORT BEND CNTY TEX MUN UTIL NR $ 300,880.80
3617LUUA4 06/27/22 1,100,000.00 02/20/70| GNMA HMBS R 84,227.31
38378BA74 08/01/12 875,000.00 1/16/51|GNMA REMIC TRUST 2012-100 AC R 42861.37
38376RB70 04/09/20 1,150,000.00 0/20/66|GNMA REMIC TRUST 2016-H23 R 249,477.30
38383PLB5 04/09/20 1,150,000.00 0/20/66|GNMA REMIC TRUST 2022-05 R 745,079.64
414108KB5 05/15/20 375,000.00 08/15/36 [HARRIS CO TX FRESH WTR SUPP R 290,831.25
564386TG5 02/20/24 595,000.00 02/15/31|[MANSFIELD TEX INDPT SCH DIST R 519,863.40
564386TA8 08/20/24 105,000.00 02/15/31|[MANSFIELD TEX INDPT SCH DIST R 93,373.35
64044XCH2 05/15/19 290,000.00 12/15/29|NEMAHA. CO NE SCH DIST LTD TAX R 279,542.60
64044XCT6 06/20/24| $ 290,000.00 12/15/29|NEMAHA. CO NE SCH DIST NO 00 NR $ 257,189.40
803770WZ5 01/19/23| $ 1,000,000.00 12/15/43[SARPY COUNTY NEB SCH DIST NO 037 [NR $ 905,130.00
83165BBH4 03/01/19| $ 1,000,000.00 08/25/28[SBA PC VAR QTRLY ADJ NR $ 128,695.13
83165BBN1 04/18/19| $ 1,000,000.00 07/25/29|SBA POOL VARIABLE RATE NR $ 191,582.97
78443VAG7 01/25/07| $ 1,000,000.00 01/25/42|SLM STUDENT LOAN TR 2007-1 NR $ 514,509.82
78443FAF4 07/19/07| $ 1,000,000.00 01/25/43[SLM STUDENT LOAN TR 2007-5 NR $ 355,608.70
878867AF7 04/15/20| $ 600,000.00 11/01/34| TECUMSEH NE RFD BDS NR $ 518,988.00
91282CCE9 03/28/22] $ 2,000,000.00 05/31/28|UNITED STATES TREASURY NR 3 1,861,250.00
9128287294 07/18/22] $ 500,000.00 02/15/30|UNITED STATES TREASURY NR 3 450,878.91
91282CBL4 08/16/23] $ 450,000.00 02/15/31|UNITED STATES TREASURY NR 3 387,457.03
91282CBS9 08/17/22] $ 500,000.00 03/01/28|UNITED STATES TREASURY NR 3 467,089.85
682001GZ9 02/20/225| $ 1,000,000.00 02/01/46| OMAHA PUB PWR DIST NEB ELEC REC |nr 3 1,018,750.00

BOOK VALUE $28,470,000.00 MKT. VALUE $15,809,662.24

46




Agenda #22

PLEDGING ANALYSIS (cont.)

AUBURN STATE BANK BALANCES - June 2025

Flexible Spending #443450

$4,921.03

MMG # 457285  (T/D,Ins.,Rev.) $1,093,833.29
MMG #191494  E,W,WW Rev. $4,670,425.40
SNA #191460 E.W,WW Rev. $269,252.03
$6,038,431.75
Bank/CDs Total
$14,686,989.49
RECAP: Original Pledge Market Value
F.D.Il.C. $250,000.00 $250,000.00
Pledges $28.470.000.00 $15,809,662.24
Sub-total $28,720,000.00 $16,059,662.24
Bank/CD x 1.02 $14,980,729.28 $14,980,729.28
Difference $13,739,270.72 $1,078,932.96

Need additional pledge in the amount of = $00.00

Proof

CD Totals All Institutions

$8,866,009.64

Auburn State Bank C.D.'s -June 2025

20688 $641,669.29
20689 $641,669.55
20690 $463,533.97
20691 $241,737.68
20693 $803,480.41
21003 $532,461.54
21004 $564,364.08
21005 $956,123.70
21006 $711,504.55
21007 $564,364.08
21008 $269,755.06
21009 $583,193.93
21010 $91,692.89
21148 $685,755.70
21424 $308,278.67
21425 $588,972.64

$8,648,557.74

Union Bank & Trust Company - June 2025 Pledge Analysis

RATING-

PLEDGE # ISSUE DATE AMOUNT| MATURITY|SECURITY PLEDGED SP/Moodys 6/30/2025
91282CCZ2 11/17/21 310,000.00( 9/30/2026 |UNITED STATES TREASURY NOTE $298,605.01
38381WT99 09/05/19 146,416.28 07/20/49|US TREASURER BILL AAA $118,128.16
36179YAT1 12/27/23 1,000,000.00 GNMA PASS THRU POOL #MA9018M $683,480.65

BOOK VALUE $1,456,416.28 MKT. VALUE $1,100,213.82

BANK BALANCES - June 2025

$6,038,431.75

Bank/CDs Total
$217,451.90|V

RECAP: Original Pledge Market Value
F.D.I.C. $250,000.00 $250,000.00
Pledges $1.456.416.28 $1.100,213.82
Sub-total $1,706,416.28 $1,350,213.82
Bank/CDx1.02 $221,800.94 $221,800.94
Difference $1,484,615.34 $1,128,412.88

Need additional pledge in the amount of = $0.00

Union Bank C.D.'s - June 2025

1106849

217,451.90

TOTAL |

$217,451.90 |V

47




City of Auburn
Board of Public Works

A (DN 1 Vo Yo
AYUTCIIUd 29

Check Register - For Board Claims - no signature line

Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2025 - 7/31/2025

Page: 1

Jul 11, 2025 04:00PM

Report Criteria:
Report type: Summary

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Amount
07/16/2025 50190 Airstream Heating & Cooling SERVICE CENTER - PLUGGED CONDENSATE LINE IN OF 255.53
07/16/2025 50191 Altec Industries Inc UNIT 8 REPAIRS 1,411.52
07/16/2025 50192 American Recycling & Sanitation CONTRACTED AMOUNT 20,965.69
07/16/2025 50193 Anderson, Aracelly CLEANING 1,050.00
07/16/2025 50194 Auburn Auto Center UNIT 9 - PARTIAL REFRIGERANT CHARGE 109.35
07/16/2025 50195 Auburn Family Health Center PC DRUG SCREEN COLLECTION FEE 140.00
07/16/2025 50196 B 103 COOP AD 152.00
07/16/2025 50197 Beard's Salvage FLAP DISCS & S OXYGEN 54.21
07/16/2025 50198 Board Of Public Works NORTH WELL FIELD 17,411.52
07/16/2025 50199 Border States Industries Inc FUSE - S & C TYPE 15 AMP STD 4,771.56
07/16/2025 50200 Bulldog Auto Supply DETAILING SUPPLIES 112.53
07/16/2025 50201 Capital Business Systems, Inc RICOH COPIER 388.20
07/16/2025 50202 Capital One Spark Business WEBCAM 1,061.36
07/16/2025 50203 Caselle Inc CONTRACT SUPPORT 2,267.00
07/16/2025 50204 City of Auburn FRANCHISE FEE 13,612.03
07/16/2025 50205 Concrete Industries Inc 47B SCREENED LIMESTONE BULK 46.50
07/16/2025 50206 County Publications PROPOSALS 994.04
07/16/2025 50207 Credit Information Services CREDIT CHECKS 134.50
07/16/2025 50208 Dettman, Naomi REBATE 30.00
07/16/2025 50209 DHHS State of Nebraska CBOD NH3, TKN TSS 397.25
07/16/2025 50210 Eggers Brothers Inc HYD FITTING MALE RUN TEE 15.60
07/16/2025 50211 Erickson, Paul TRAVEL EXPENSE - GM HIRE 1,437.06
07/16/2025 50212 Filter Care of Nebraska CLEANED FILTERS 24.55
07/16/2025 50213 Gardner, Barbara REBATE 30.00
07/16/2025 50214 Gerdes Construction LLC LESLIE PROPERTY CLAIM 13,824.70
07/16/2025 50215 Glenn's Corner Market Restroom Supplies 53.54
07/16/2025 50216 Grainger Inc 4CFH4 - COMM PRESSURE GAUGE 100 PSI 2-1/2 IN DIAL 118.07
07/16/2025 50217 Great Plains Lawn Care MOWING 1,710.00
07/16/2025 50218 Green Care Lawn Service LAWN CARE 1,120.00
07/16/2025 50219 Hawkins Inc CHLORINE CYLINDERS 1,509.75
07/16/2025 50220 HireRight Solutions LLC BACKGROUND CHECK 541.20
07/16/2025 50221 Husker Electric CONDUIT - PVC SCH402IN 473.56
07/16/2025 50222 Jackson Services Inc. MATS 2,140.98
07/16/2025 50223 Kansas Municipal Utilities LINEWORKER APPRENTICESHIP - GORACKE 600.00
07/16/2025 50224 Lavigne Construction Inc OFFICE KITCHEN REMODEL 12,646.52
07/16/2025 50225 League Of Nebraska Municipalities LIGHT MEMBERSHIP FEES 270.00
07/16/2025 50226 Lincoln Winwater VALVE - 1/4 X 1/2 IN INJECTION VALVE ASSEMBLY 929.08
07/16/2025 50227 Lynch's Hardware & Gifts GFI WHITE 96.51
07/16/2025 50228 McConnaughey, Jodie REBATE 30.00
07/16/2025 50229 Meyer-Earp Auto Center LLC UNIT 31 TIRE REPAIR - REPLACE 2 TPMS 262.35
07/16/2025 50230 Midwest Laboratories Inc SUPPLY LONGS CREEK 110.35
07/16/2025 50231 Miller & Associates Consulting Engineers PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - NEW WATER SOURCE EVAL 8,380.39
07/16/2025 50232 Nemaha County Clerk LEIN 40.00
07/16/2025 50233 Omaha Winwater Works Company VALVE - BALL 3/4 IN 398.26
07/16/2025 50234 One Call Concepts Inc LOCATES 147.23
07/16/2025 50235 Petty Cash SAFETY BOOTS - SHERMAN 175.00
07/16/2025 50236 Pinpoint Auburn, Inc PHONE SERVICE 7/01/2025-7/31/2025 433.93
07/16/2025 50237 PIP Marketing Signs & Print UTILITY BILL 3,350.08
07/16/2025 50238 RESCO CRIMPIT - 336-336 - WR775 312.18
07/16/2025 50239 Sack Lumber Company CRADLE CAULK GUN 26.59
07/16/2025 50240 SECUR-SERV PROOFPOINT SUPPORT 1,295.36
07/16/2025 50241 SKJ Enterprises LLC REBATE 1,200.00
07/16/2025 50242 Subsurface Technologies Inc. AQUA GARD SERVICE WELLS 1, 2,3,5,6,19 & 20 125,590.00
07/16/2025 50243 Truck Center Companies UNIT 4 RADIATOR PLST FTL M2106 BC 08-1 872.80
07/16/2025 50244 US Cellular MONTHLY SERVICE CHG -6/10/2025-7/09/2025 726.17

48



City of Auburn
Board of Public Works

A b kD)
AYUTCIIUd 29

Check Register - For Board Claims - no signature line

Check Issue Dates: 7/1/2025 - 7/31/2025

Page: 2

Jul 11, 2025 04:00PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Amount
07/16/2025 50245 Utility Equipment Company 8"x20' DR18 CERTA-LOK C900 INTEGRAL BELL RJ PIPE 27,809.28
07/16/2025 50246 Village of Brownville WASTE WATER 8,168.44
07/16/2025 50247 Village of Nemaha GARBAGE 4,834.42
07/16/2025 50248 Water Engineering Inc MONTHLY AGREEMENT 432.11
07/16/2025 50249 Wesco Distribution Inc ADAPTER - PVC 3/4 IN MALE 3,241.07
07/16/2025 50250 Western Area Power Administration ENERGY- JUNE 2025 39,958.95
07/16/2025 50251 Zoro Tools Inc Burndy Penetrox A-13 Electrical Joint Compound - MFR # P8 67.71
Grand Totals: 330,768.58

Report Criteria:

Report type: Summary

49



Agenda #23

Board of Public Works Check Register - Summary Page: 1
Report Dates: 07/01/2025 - 07/31/2025 Jul 14, 2025 8:49AM
Check Number Check Issue Date Payee Amount
50252 07/16/2025 ST of NE-DHHS Finiancial Srvs 869.45
50253 07/16/2025 Andrew, Jordan B 197.82
50254 07/16/2025 Atkinson, Mitchell 210.74
50255 07/16/2025 Edstrand, Sherri 407.91
50256 07/16/2025 Fausti, Joseph 116.98
50257 07/16/2025 Kaelin, Ronald 64.97
50258 07/16/2025 Siebold, Gabrielle 237.78

Grand Totals: 2,105.65

50



CHECKS WRITTEN NEED RATIFIED

Agenda #23

AFLAC

Ameritas

ASB

ASSURITY

BCBS

Black Hills Energy
Chase Paymentech
DIRECT DEPOSIT TOTAL
Guardian Life

IBEW 1536

IRS

Mutual of Omaha
NDOR W/H

NE Dept of Revenue
NPPD

PointC

Quadient

Southwest Power Pool
The Principal Group
United Parcel Service
Verizon Wireless
WEX Fleet Universal
Windstream

Xpress Bill Pay

271.16
7,945.40
475.00
138.40
18,667.07
127.80
1,654.57
60,892.86
1,702.80
781.51
23,098.10
375.23
6,510.96
24,096.10
151,167.14
7,648.11
100.00
37,942.91
1,191.73
325.70
90.22
2,672.43
175.66
1,021.54

349,072.40

CLAIMS BY FUND
Electric 73,779.20
Water 196,700.06
Wastewater 28,521.60
Villages 13,002.86
Garbage 20,870.51
332,874.23

51



June Claims Transfer Request - ASB Money Market to Checking

Vendor Claims
Prior Month ACH Claims
Payroll
Payments

Bank Balance Checking 6/30/2025

0/S Checks & ACH
0/S Deposits - 191460

Payments - Balance
Operational Transfer Request

Estimated Ending Balance

332,874.23
349,072.40
100,000.00

781,946.63

269,252.03
57,763.44
6,778.97

218,267.56

(563,679.07)
677,000.00

113,320.93

Prior Month ACH Claims

AFLAC

Ameritas

ASB

ASSURITY

BCBS

Black Hills Energy
Chase Paymentech
DIRECT DEPOSIT TOTAL
Guardian Life

IBEW 1536

IRS

Mutual of Omaha
NDOR W/H

NE Dept of Revenue
NPPD

Point C

Quadient

Southwest Power Pool
The Principal Group
United Parcel Service
Verizon Wireless
WEX Fleet Universal
Windstream

Xpress Bill Pay

Agenda #23

349,072.40
271.16
7,945.40
475.00
138.40
18,667.07
127.80
1,654.57
60,892.86
1,702.80
781.51
23,098.10
375.23
6,510.96
24,096.10
151,167.14
7,648.11
100.00
37,942.91
1,191.73
325.70
90.22
2,672.43
175.66
1,021.54

52



Agenda #23

Cost of Unbilled
Services Provided to the City of Auburn

2025
Street Lights
Month Labor Equipment Materials Utility Bill Total
January 10,606.07 3,690.00 19.41 2,189.24 16,504.72
February 9,526.29 3,060.00 19.84 1,765.47 14,371.60
March 2,785.63 840.00 960.32 1,443.35 6,029.30
April 2,697.82 800.00 25.43 1,331.02 4,854.27
May 1,519.36 300.00 613.41 1,034.72 3,467.49
June 111.15 300.00 197.98 1,367.72 1,976.85
July 0.00
August 0.00
September 0.00
October 0.00
November 0.00
December 0.00
Grand Totals $27,246.32 $8,990.00 $1,836.39 $9,131.52 $47,204.23

53




A b kD)
AYUTCIIUd 29

City of Auburn Task and Activity Report - Task Hours for Board Meetings Page: 1
Board of Public Works Report Dates: 6/1/2025 - 6/30/2025 Jul 11, 2025 02:19PM
Activity Task Task
Code Activity Description Number Title Date Hours

Total Activity: 100 Regular: 3,148.25

Total Activity: 200 Overtime: 131.00

Total Activity: 300 Vacation: 445,50

Total Activity: 401 Sick: 144.25

Total Activity: 500 Leave Without Pay: 48.00

Total Activity: 805 Funeral Leave - Immediate Family (See Handbook): 13.00

Total Activity: 812 Nemaha - Regular: 28.50

Total Activity: 813 Nemaha - Overtime: 4.00

Total Activity: 901 Comp Time Used: 62.50

Total Activity: 902 Comp Time Earned: 8.50

Grand Totals: 4,033.50

54



Village of Brownville
2025 Costs Incurred and Billed

Agenda #23

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Labor for Billing 350.00 350.00 350.00| 350.00 350.00 350.00 2100.00
Billing Charge per Bill 58.00 58.50 58.00 58.00 57.00 57.00 346.50
Verizon SCADA 0.00
Shipping Samples 0.00
Mileage 33.60 -16.80 16.80
Materials 30.20 30.20
Credit 0.00
Water Meters 623.00 46427 1,087.27
Meals 0.00
Labor - Electric REG 0.00
Labor - Elec OT 0.00
Labor- Water REG 175.00 35.00 210.00
Labor- WW REG 140.00 140.00
Labor- Admin REG 0.00
Labor - Water OT 0.00
Labor - WW OT 0.00
Labor - HOLDBL 0.00
Equipment 150.00 150.00
Monthly Totals 408.00 1,240.10 456.40 408.00| 497.00 871.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00{ 4,080.77
Village of Johnson
2025 Costs Incurred and Billed
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Shipping Samples 0.00
Mileage 14.00 14.00
Materials 0.00
Water Meters 0.00
Meals 0.00
Labor - Electric REG 0.00
Labor- Water REG 0.00
Labor- WW REG 0.00
Labor- Admin REG 0.00
Labor - Water OT 0.00
Labor - WW OT 210.00 210.00
Labor - HOLDBL 0.00
Equipment 300 300.00
Monthly Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00] 524.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 524.00]
Village of Nemaha
2025 Costs Incurred and Billed
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Labor for Billing 280.00 280.00 280.00| 280.00 280.00 280.00 1680.00
Billing Charge per Bill 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 300.00
Verizon SCADA 40.01 40.01 40.01 40.01 40.01 40.01
Shipping Samples 13.38 13.36 13.47 40.21
Mileage 164.57 166.95 17500 175.00 534.17 1.215.69
Materials 865.21 4,185.81 79.83 32.88 28.56 519229
Water Meters 0.00
Meals 0.00
Misc 372.75
Labor - Elec REG
Labor- Water REG 1330.00 595.00| 2,135.00| 665.00( 1,645.00 630.00 7,000.00
Labor- WW REG 245.00 175.00 210.00| 490.00( 175.00 210.00 1,505.00
Labor- Admin REG 140.00 140.00 280.00
Labor - Water OT 210.00 945.00 1,155.00
Labor - WW OT 0.00
Labor - HOLDBL 0.00
Equipment 0.00
Monthly Totals 3.324.79 5632.77| 2,969.84| 2,086.14| 3,181.25| 1,786.21 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00[ 18,368.19]
City of Peru
2025 Costs Incurred and Billed
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD
Verizon SCADA 50.25 50.25 50.21 50.29 50.25 50.21 301.46
Shipping Samples 0.00
Mileage 80.50 36.40 36.40 63.00 37.80 254.10
Materials 368.80 368.80
Water Meters 0.00
Bulk Water 0.00
Meals 0.00
Finance Fees
Labor- Water REG 140.00 1,260.00 35.00 980.00 2,415.00
Labor- WW REG 595.00 805.00 140.00 1,540.00
Labor- Admin REG 490.00 490.00 980.00
Labor - Water OT/CTE 420.00 210.00 210.00 840.00
Labor - WW OT 52.50 52.50
Labor - HOLDBL 700.00 700.00
Equipment 375.00 1,725.00 717.50 1,050.00 3,867.50
Monthly Totals 3,272.05 3,106.65 436.61| 2,090.79| 295.25| 2,118.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 11,319.36

55



